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Corporate Information
AAEH
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFUBERE

(For the year ended 31 December)

(BET-A=1+—HLLFE)

Five-Year Financial Summary AFHEHE

RMB’000 AREFT
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZETRF ZTTLF ZTT)\F ZTTNF 2B -ZF
Revenue N 414969 604,688 903,298 1,247,355 1,782,447
Gross profit EF 70,083 111924 187,040 293435 437,582
Profit before tax BB AE T 50,181 78,640 117,137 181,511 281,474
Profit attributable to owners ViN/NETE 2SN
of the Company FEAE 50,081 70,296 103,491 151,067 216,419
Basic earnings per share (RMB) EREXRZF (ARE) 0.136 0.191 0.281 0.333 0.441
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) FREERN (ARKE) 0.139 0.189 N/ATEA N/ATEA NATEA
Non-current assets ERBEE 23,326 51,026 66,268 135959 359,432
Current assets REAE 240,320 372,904 482,726 989,836 1,377,596
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 17,840 58,437 N/ATEMA 60,712 197,072
Current liabilities REAE 57,075 88994 110,637 226,232 476,856
Net assets BEFE 188,731 276,499 438357 838,851 1,063,100
Revenue Profit Attributable to
N Owners of the Company
RAREE AEMLRE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARSTFT ARMTFIT
1,782,447
1,800,000 240,000 216,419
1,600,000 +
1400000 1,247,355 180,000 1
1,200,000 + 151,067
1,000,000 + 903,298
800,000 - 120,000 - 103,491
amo |, 604,688 70,296
400000 + o 60,000 - 50081
200000 + I I I I
0 0
06 07 08 09 10 06 07 08 09 10

Note:

The results of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2006, 2007 and the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2006 and 2007 are extracted from the

Company’s prospectus dated 31 December 2008.
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On behalf of all members of the Board, | am pleased to present the

Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2010.

In 2010, the global photovoltaic industry has leaped forward as a whole.
This year is also a milestone for Singyes Solar’s development. The Group
seized the opportunities to plan and build the production base in Hunan,
successfully operate the smart grid and promote the industrialized
solar housing to overseas. Meanwhile, the Group has launched the
new concentrating solar business, which was successfully applied in a

number of large projects, to the market.

Under the concerted efforts of all staff, the Group achieved excellent
results with rapid growth and encouraging financial performance. As at
31 December 2010, the Group recorded strong growth in sales of the
new business related to solar energy, which was resulted in a new high
in overall profits. Turnover during the year amounted to RMB1,782.4
million, representing an increase of 43%; profits amounted to RMB216.4

million, representing an increase of 43.2%.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS DOMAINS

Conventional curtain wall business-based on the
construction of railway stations

Since the Group’s involvement in the new railway
construction in the PRC, the business of railway stations
has maintained steady development. As at 31 December
2010, our business of railway stations accounted for 19.4%
of the revenue from construction contracts for the year. In
the 12th five-year plan, the central government continued to
focus on the development of the railway business to speed
up the development of high-speed railway and promote the
construction of the inter-city express railway network. We
believe that with the quality brand, professional skills and
experiences of Singyes Solar, the Group will continue to excel

in the construction of railway stations in the future.

Solar power business-putting BIPV as the core

The Group is committed to the development of BIPV
application and actively engaged in the establishment of
the BIPV application projects. The 20MW large roof power
station project in our production base in Hunan was in the
“2010 Golden Sun Demonstration Project” list jointly issued
by the National Energy Administration, Ministry of Finance
and Ministry of Science and Technology, which signified
our leading position in design, technology, installation and
operation in the integrated segment of photovoltaic solar
energy. With the advantage of leading technology, the Group
participated in the preparation of a number of national and
local standards, atlases and requirements. On 24 November
2010, the Group became the first undertaking unit of the
Secretariat of the Standardization Committee for Photovoltaic
Solar Energy System in Guangdong Province, which was in
contact with the Standardization Committee for Photovoltaic

Solar Energy System in the PRC.
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3. Solar heat collection business-focused on building of
integrated solar thermal
Our building of integrated solar thermal is to integrate the
solar thermal system with the balconies, side galleries, wall
facades and roof to provide solar hot water system to large
buildings. The system has a high utilization rate of solar
energy with significant economic benefit. Currently, with
the production line of advanced solar heat collectors and
professional solution for the construction of curtain wall
system, the Group has promoted the system for building
integrated solar thermal to schools, hospitals, hotels,

commercial and residential areas and etc..

4, Industrialized solar housing
Industrialized solar housing is permanent housing
integrating small solar system and solar hot water system,
which uses new energy to for its own energy supply.
Currently, the housing system is promoted overseas. During
2010, the Group obtained a sales contract to provide about
1,300 sets of industrialized solar housing to Nigeria in the
amount of approximately US$13 million. The Group will rely
on its self-developed smart micro-grid technology to further

expand the market of industrialized solar housing.

RESEARCH AND INNOVATION

As a pioneer in the application and integration of solar energy, the
Group emphasizes on research and innovation. In last year, our
self-developed smart micro-grid was in trial operation at Dong’
ao Island in Zhuhai. Our smart micro-grid system is an high-end
extension of solar technology which can provide clean, safe and
reliable electricity to power supply network in off-grid areas, remote

villages and cities.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Meanwhile, our self-developed solar heat-absorbing air-
conditioning system has also achieved success. The system is a
high-end technology in the solar heat collection domain which
will provide us with fundamental change in energy saving for

construction and huge market for our solar thermal business.

FUTURE PLANNING

The Group will continue to promote the business with plans and
gradually increase the proportion of products to transform from
focusing on construction projects to having equal sales from
construction projects and products, so as to achieve significant

increase in revenue of business related to solar energy.

The Group will construct development, production and
demonstration base in Zhuhai, Hunan and Tianjin respectively.
Among them, Zhuhai will become a development base which
supports the integrated application of the solar power and solar
heat collection system. We have completed the construction
of a 100,000-square-meter high standard modernized plant in
Hunan for the manufacturing of related products for the integrated
application of the solar power and solar heat collection system.
We will construct a green technology demonstration building
with photovoltaic power, integrated use of solar thermal and
comprehensive application of various energy-saving technologies

in the Sino-Singapore Eco-City in Tianjin Binhai New Area.

The Group currently has over a thousand employees, including
over a hundred highly educated professionals domestically and
overseas, which achieved the development target of globalized
markets and internationalized staff. We have obtained approval for
the establishment of a post-doctoral research sub-station and will

recruit more professional talents to secure our technical innovation.

The Group will adhere to the strategic development targets of large-
scale industry, globalized market, modernized management and
professional talents to form sustainable competitiveness to achieve

outstanding results and maximize returns for shareholders!
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Corporate Governance Report

OVERVIEW

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the
importance of incorporating elements of good corporate governance
in the management structures and internal control procedures of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective
accountability. This report outlines the principles and the code provisions
of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Directors
consider that, for the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the Code, except for the deviation from paragraph A.2

of the Code as described below.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has established an audit committee in compliance with paragraph
C.3 of the Code to oversee the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to ensure compliance with the
Listing Rules. It has also established a nomination committee and a

remuneration committee with defined terms of reference.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance
practices of the Company to ensure formal and transparent procedures
are in place to protect and maximize the interests of the shareholders of

the Company.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company from the Listing Date up

to the date of this report (the “Review Period”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors
and all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding

directors’ securities transactions throughout the year.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) takes responsibility to oversee all
major matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of overall business strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, and supervising and monitoring the performance of the senior
management who are delegated with the authority and responsibility for
day-to-day management and operation of the Company. The Directors

have the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the Company.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including three executive
Directors, namely, Mr. LIU Hongwei, who is also the Chairman of the
Company, Mr. SUN Jilin and Mr. XIE Wen, two non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. LIN Xiaofeng and Mr. Cao Zhirong and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. WANG
Ching, and Mr. CHENG Jinshu.

The Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over
half of the board members are non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made

in the best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board
Committees”). Further details of these committees are set out below on
pages 13 to 15.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding board meetings regularly
for at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc
meetings will also be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of
board meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular
board meeting. Reasonable notices will be given to the directors for ad-

hoc board meetings.

10 china Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010

Exg

%%ﬁ(F§$ﬁJ)E§%§$@EFﬁﬁEE$

 BIEGE MBS RE - NEIEE
EEBEERS EBEMEFEREAEAR
ARRERELNSREREBENRR -EF
BEAEUARRNR BRI EEIRETSE -

BAl ARAESEH\LEFEK 8=
RMTERRMHEE (RTRARREZRE) -
BRERTENHEE  MAFRITEFME
EEEREEREE  UR=RBIIFNTE
EHKERE  ERELETIESBIEL -

ERgMEARAREBYETER  B¥HES
ERERIFMITEST MBI FNITES - 5
REESMELNMARERDETEAERK
EHROKEMNE ©

EFxgCo R RERZECR((EREZE
) FMZEe ((HFMEEE)) RIZREER
2((REZBEREFZEe(MBIESE
BE)RAFENRE - ARZSZESNE
—HFE BN TXEISEEF LA o

ARAWEREEHREFRIEHRTONR

AROBFRT-R RERNEARERREE
o R ERREANANEE NS EMITBER

B 2BEFKNBITEHRETETANRD
UREZREESSHRE  MERESES:
BEIRAERHAELRETES -



Corporate Governance Report

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means of

communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant materials to all
the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All the
Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include

matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

Prior notice convening the Board meeting was dispatched to the Directors
setting out the matters to be discussed. At the meeting, the Directors were
provided with relevant documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary of the Company is responsible for keeping minutes of

the Board meetings.

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of 5 board meetings.
The attendance of individual Directors at the meetings are set out below:

Board Meetings

Name of Directors Attendance
Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Hongwei 5/5
Mr. SUN Jinli 5/5
Mr. XIE Wen 5/5
Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIN Xiaofeng 5/5
Mr. Cao Zhirong 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WANG Ching 5/5
Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon 5/5
Mr. CHENG Jinshu 5/5
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

THE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN

Mr. Liu Hongwei, the Chairman of the Group, is responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board, ensuring that all material
issues are decided by the Board in a conducive manner. Mr. Liu Hongwei
is also responsible for running the Group’s business and effective
implementation of the strategies of the Group. The Company is aware
of the requirement under paragraph A.2 of the Code that the roles of
chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. Nevertheless, the Board considers
that the combination of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company as the Board will meet regularly
to consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The
Board is of the view that this structure provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership, which can facilitate the formulation and
implementation of its strategies and decisions and enable it to grasp
business opportunities and react to changes efficiently. As such, it is
beneficial to the business prospects of the Group. Therefore Mr. Liu
Hongwei is performing the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company possess
a wealth of professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advices to the Board.
They have played a significant role in the Board by virtue of their
independent judgment and their views carry significant weight in the
Board'’s decision. In particular, they bring an impartial view on issues
of the Company’s strategy, performance and control. The Board also
considers that independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Company’s business strategy, results and management
so that all interests of shareholders of the Company are taken into
consideration, and the interests of the Company and its shareholders are
taken into account in all business decisions. The Company has received
the annual confirmation signed by each independent non-executive
Director to acknowledge their respective independence. After prudent
enquiry, the Board is of the view that each of Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon,
Mr. WANG Ching, and Mr. CHENG Jinshu maintains the independence
as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company will review, on
an annual basis, any decisions in relation to new business opportunities
referred to the Company. As at the date of this report, there is no new

business opportunity introduced to the Group.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term of three years commencing

from the Listing Date.

Each of the non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three

years commencing from the Listing Date.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a

term of three years from 19 December 2008.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three

years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules and paragraph C.4 of the Code.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to oversee the financial
reporting process and internal control procedure of the Group, to review
the financial information of the Group and to consider issues relating
to the external auditor. The Audit Committee consists of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick
Wing Fat, Simon and Mr. Cheng Jinshu, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30
June 2010 and for the year ended 31 December 2010, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the system of internal

control.
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During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Audit Committee held
2 meeting. The following table shows the attendance of members of the

Audit Committee’s meetings:

No. of Audit Committee

Directors: meetings attended/held:
YICK Wing Fat, Simon (Chairman) 2/2
WANG Ching 2/2
CHENG Jinshu 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with paragraph B.1 of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages
for all Directors. The Remuneration Committee consists of four members,
namely, Mr. Cheng Jinshu, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, Mr. Wang Ching
and Mr. Liu Hongwei. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr.

Cheng Jinshu.
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting to review the remuneration packages and overall benefit

of the Directors of the Group.

The following table shows the attendance and members of the

Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December 2010:

No. of Remuneration Committee

Directors: meetings attended/held:
CHENG Jinshu (Chairman) 1/1
YICK Wing Fat, Simon 1/1
WANG Ching 1/1
LIU Hongwei 1/1

14 china Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010

BHE_Z
ZEERTMAEE - TRIBJIBERZEEK
BHEEZRNER

EET-A=+—HIFE X

I

HEBTEREESY
BE: SENIE
SKEE (L) 2/2
F = 2/2
[EScE) 2/2

FHEES
ARRESTTAEB LGENRE  REBEEER
ZEENF T AT AHABBRIRERKLH
MEZEE - FHEZEENETERERIARA
EXNRMERABNFNBE  ARRER
%L H NI RS IE AN = 3 B A2 Fr B2 1
EEMAESNHMEN  MESSIFLHR
BR - HINEESmmaKEAK - B2
T GOKBEE  FREERBITHETE -
¥FZEehEeBEERETE -

N

BE_Z-"THFET_A=TRHLFE  FMH
ZEERTREHE  UERLAEEZEZHH
RN EREET

o

o

TREFEE_T-ZTF+_A=1+—AHLHF
EHFMEEa e EHFETHNENR

HE S BOIFHNESES
=3 BRI
Bew (£E) 11
5KE 1/1
T = 1/1
24T 4 11



Corporate Governance Report

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with the Recommended Best Practices of paragraph A.4 of the Code.
The primary duties of the Nomination committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes.
The Nomination Committee consists of five members, namely Mr. Liu
Hongwei, Mr. Xie Wen, Mr. Wang Ching, Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon and
Mr. Cheng Jinshu. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu

Hongwei.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review and
approval of such nomination by the Board, The Nomination Committee
will evaluate potential candidates by considering factors such as

professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting to consider the nomination of Mr. Cao Zhirong as a
Non-executive Director. The following table shows the attendance and
members of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31
December 2010:

No. of Nomination Committee

Directors: meetings attended/held:
LIU Hongwei (Chairman) 1/1
XIE Wen 11
WANG Ching 11
YICK Wing Fat, Simon 1/1
CHENG Jinshu 11
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Finance Department, is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and the Group. In
the preparation of financial statements, International Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies,
disclosure requirements under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Listing Rules have been consistently used and applied. The Board aims to
present a clear and balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in
the annual and interim reports to the shareholders of the Company, and

make appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

External Auditor

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the fee paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services amounted to approximately RMB2,980,000 and approximately
HK$28,000 respectively.

Internal control

The Group appointed BDO Financial Services Limited to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2010. The Group is also in the process of improving and
establishing the internal control manual to further enhance its internal

control system.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for the
Company’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness,
and , in particular, considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reportng function, and the training programmes and budget. The Board
will conduct periodic review on the progress of the improvement and

endeavor to enhance the internal control measures of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2010, which were prepared

in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the

independent auditor’s report on pages 56 to 57.

GOING CONCERN

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWE DN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a professional renewable energy system integrator and building
contractor, our main businesses are the design, fabrication and
installation of conventional curtain walls and BIPV systems. Our BIPV
system involves (i) the integration of photovoltaic technology into the
architectural design of buildings and structures and (ii) conversion
of solar energy into electricity for use. Our system allow the electricity
generated from solar panels to be connected to the power grid of a
building and the electricity generated from sun power will be consumed
simultaneously. No extra electricity storage cost is required. In addition,
we also engage in the production and sale of solar-power products,
including smart grid system, prefabricated solar houses, solar thermal
system and solar street lamp. Leveraging on our track record and
extensive experiences in our curtain wall business, we will further
strengthen and develop our renewable energy business in respect of
BIPV systems and solar-power products. Apart from the above, we also
provide engineering design services and engage in the sale of curtain wall

materials.

Our Group will endeavour to continue our focus to solar business. In the
long run, we aspire and strive to grow into an enterprise with a focus on

renewable energy business.

In the meantime, we will still maintain our presence in conventional
curtain wall business, especially in the public sector, in order to further
broaden our customer base for our BIPV and solar power station

business.

FUTURE PLANS AND STRATEGIES

EXPANSION OF OPERATING SCALE TO MEET
FUTURE BUSINESS GROWTH

We acquired a land in Hunan in 2010 for the construction of our new
factory premises. The construction work of the factory premises has
substantially been completed till now and the new plant will commence
operation in the second quarter of this year. Total capital expenditure
incurred in respect of the Hunan new factory in 2010 was approximately
RMB129 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

We will construct a 20MW solar farm on the roof top of our new
Hunan plant, this 20MW roof top solar farm was the largest project
under the Golden Sun program announced in November 2010. The
Directors believed that this is a significant achievement of the Group’s
solar business and the Group will continue its leading position in solar
downstream area. As the Mainland China Government will continue to
make significant investment to support renewable business, the Directors

are optimistic about the future business growth.

FOCUS ON PUBLIC WORK PROJECTS,
ESPECIALLY RAILWAY STATIONS

We plan to undertake more public work related to conventional curtain
wall engineering and BIPV projects, in particular, those for railway
stations. Railway transportation has been developing rapidly in China in
recent years. Under the Twelfth Five-Year Plan, the PRC government
will continue to make substantial investment for the construction of high
speed railway. This trend of capital investment by the PRC government in
railway construction projects coupled with the government policies that
encourage energy-saving products and the use of renewable energy will

create opportunities for our conventional curtain wall and BIPV business.

Our Directors believe that, given our Group’s proven track record of
engaging in railway station projects, our established relationship with
state-owned developers and contractors, the Group is able to secure more

railway-related projects in the near future.

Revenue from railway continues to be our stable source of revenue.
During the year, we had 23 railway stations projects completed or under
construction and total revenue from railway station projects accounted for

approximately 19.4% of our revenue from construction contacts.
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STRENGTHENING OUR BIPV BUSINESS AND
TO FURTHER DEVELOP OUR SOLAR-POWER
PRODUCT BUSINESS

We intend to further strengthen our BIPV business by undertaking more
BIPV projects. As the target customers of our BIPV projects largely
overlap with those of our conventional curtain wall business, we can tap
into the established networks of customers and subcontractors of our
conventional curtain wall business to promote our BIPV business. We
believe that the combination of our proven track record, our expertise,
our technical know-how and experience in the curtain wall industry, our
strength in BIPV business would position us well as we anticipate great

development potential of BIPV projects in the coming years.

We intend to devote more research efforts in the development and design
of new solar-power products in the near future in order to capture the
growing market demand for solar-power products. Moreover, through the
strategic cooperation with a number of solar panel manufacturers, we
aim to tap into their PRC and overseas customer base and distribution
network to secure business for our BIPV systems and solar-power

products and to seek overseas business opportunities.

During the year, we have achieved a very satisfactory result in our BIPV
business. Revenue contribution from BIPV accounted for approximately
31.4% of our total revenue, while in 2009, it only accounted for

approximately 24.9% of our total revenue.

Apart from that, we also secured additional 23MW roof top solar power
stations from the Golden Sun program announced in November 2010.
While 20MW is the roof top project on our Human new factory and the

remaining one is an external customer.

We started to sell solar related goods in the second half of 2009, revenue
from solar related goods significantly increased from RMB71.6 million
in 2009 to RMB193.7 million in 2010. In 2009, 72% of the sale in solar
related goods was from BIPV related materials, and the remaining 28%
were mainly derived from solar street lamp and solar water pumping

system.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2010, we launched a variety of new products and the most successful
product was solar thermal system. In 2010, BIPV materials accounted
for about 18% of the revenue from solar related goods, the remaining
82% comprised of solar street lamp, solar thermal system and other solar

products. Solar thermal system is the major revenue driver in this sector.

STRENGTHENING OUR RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT CAPABILITIES

We have been devoting significant research efforts and resources since
2005 in the research of BIPV systems and solar-power products and the
use of thin-film BIPV panels in such areas. Given the fast-paced growth
of the curtain wall industry, it is likely that competition in this industry will
intensify. In order to maintain our competitive edge, we will continue to

focus on strengthening our research capabilities.

In January 2010, we entered into a technology research agreement with
School of Mechanical & Automotive Engineering, South China University
of Technology (“SCUT”). Under the agreement, our Group engaged
SCUT in the research of the application of solar-thermal system and
commercializing relevant products. SCUT is specifically focusing on the
research and development of thermal controlling system. Provided with
the professional knowledge of SCUT, we believe that it can help us to
improve the quality of our existing products, to solve constraints during
the production process and most importantly, to develop new solar-

thermal related products.

In January 2010, we entered into a cooperation agreement with Green
Building and New Energy Research Center of Tongji University. Under the
agreement, we cooperated around the research of building energy saving
and new energy technology. We would also set up a joint laboratory,
declare technology programs, and establish application test platform for

solar buildings.

During the year, we also entered into another cooperation agreement with
Guangzhou Energy Research Lab of the Chinese Academy of Sciences
(the “CAS”). Under co-operation agreement, the Group will closely work
with the CAS on the remote monitoring system for smart grid network and

the research and development of energy management system.
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Our commitment on research and development in new renewable energy

was well rewarded.

Firstly, the smart grid project of the Group at Dong’ ao Island in Zhuhai,
which combines wind power generation, solar power generation, diesel
fuel power generation and energy storage (i.e. a wind-solar-diesel fuel

power and storage system) was in trial operation.

After the successful of the trial operation of the smart grid project on
Dong’ao Island, the use of renewable energy in Dong'ao Island will be
increased to 70%, this is a breakthrough of new energy generation on
island. This state-of-the-art resolution system can apply not only on
islands, but also in villages, rural area and regions with no grid network.
The Directors expect that the smart grid will become an important
application of renewable energy in China as well as in the rest of the
World.

Secondly, we have introduced a new product called pre-fabricated solar
power house in 2010 and we have secured a contract worth US$13
million in Nigeria, the concept of smart grid technologies also applied to
this project. We believed that the combination of smart grid technologies
and pre-fabricated solar power house perfectly suit the need of remote

area in Africa and the western area of Mainland China.

SEEKING BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES OUTSIDE
THE PRC

We began to provide services to our first overseas customers in June
2007. In order to create brand awareness in the overseas market, we
have participated in and plan to participate more in various trade fairs
and exhibitions in the PRC and overseas. Such trade fairs and exhibitions
provide us with a platform to collate relevant market information and trends

and provide us with the opportunity to meet with potential customers.

In 2010, we have secured a sizable project in Doha, Qatar with contract
value of approximately US$17.7 million and another project with total
contact value of US$13 million to supply smart grid technologies and pre-
fabricated solar power house to Nigeria. The award of these contracts
is a land mark for the Group’s overseas project development, we are

optimistic about our future business in the overseas market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW E 958 p dE1)

REVENUE L/ON

TRITBADE :

The following table set out the breakdown of revenue:

Conventional curtain walls BEHEE
— Public work —RAHTIE 403.3 396.3
— Commercial and industrial buildings —IiEF 270.3 286.9
— High-end residential buildings —EREEER 90.3 82.8
763.9 766.0
BIPV JeIREE gL
— Public work /A 300.1 158.5
— Commercial and industrial buildings —ITHEF 260.7 118.2
— High-end residential buildings —=SiEFEE - 33.7
560.8 310.4
Total Construction Contracts EEA R 1,324.7 1,076.4
Sale of goods HEEMm
— Curtain wall materials — &R 261.9 98.9
— Solar related goods — KI5 A Em 193.7 71.6
Total sale of goods SHEEMBRT 455.6 170.5
Rendering of design services R R 2.1 0.5
Total revenue FEN N 1,782.4 1,247 .4
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Construction contracts BEAR

— Conventional curtain walls — B E 120.8 15.8 130.2 17.0

- BIPV —JRiEE L 200.8 35.8 1156 37.2
321.6 24.3 245.8 22.8

Sale of goods EmiEE

— Conventional curtain materials —EgEET R 51.6 19.7 21.7 21.9

— Solar related goods — KI5 A Em 63.0 32.5 255 356
114.6 25.2 47.2 27.7

Rendering of design services AR AR 1.4 N/A 0.4 N/A

Overall gross profit margin MER = 437.6 24.6 293.4 235

The Group’s revenue increased year-on-year by RMB535.0 million REEBU AR E TG R AR 535,000,000
or 42.9%, from RMB1,247.4 million in 2009 to RMB1,782.4 million TL429% HZZEZTNLFHARE
in 2010. Gross profit of the Group increased by RMB144.2 million or 1,247,400000 T E - —TFHNARE
49.1%, from RMB293.4 million in 2009 to RMB437.6 million in 2010, 1,782,400,0007T » AEEKEFIL R AR
the increase in gross profit is proportionately higher than the increase in 144,200,000 708¢49.1% - BT NFHA
revenue in 2010, it was because the revenue contribution from BIPV and R 293,400,000 T E =T —TFM AR
solar related businesses became higher in 2010. 437,600,0007C + EFIgEEHR T —ZFIK
ABTHE » TR - ST E R E R —
Bt RAGERBEENBABRRES -

1) The Group’s conventional wall business slightly dropped by 1) AEEEGEBEBEMTHRARE

RMB2.1 million or 0.3%. The Group is now shifting its focus to 2,100,0007580.3% ° A5 E B 5l =
BIPV and solar related business and the management of the Group HEmNARRE - R AGEAEE
did not aggressively allocating resources to expand its business in BRASEEEEWRRE NhHEEE
the conventional curtain wall business. RIEREERERES -

Nevertheless, we still maintain a leading position in railway station AT FRAPVDREE N B UL B )
area, we involved in 23 railway station projects and the revenue i - IS 23 @A BEAIE B KA
contribution from railway related business in 2010 was RMB256.5 BEBR_Z-ZFHNRATHBAAR
million, which accounted for about 33.6% of the total revenue in & 256,500,000 7T I EREBEGE
conventional curtain walls. WA #)33.6% ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross profit from conventional wall businesses dropped slightly
from RMB130.2 million to RMB120.8 million, because the Group
is shifting its focus from conventional wall businesses to solar
related businesses. Gross profit margin also dropped slightly from
17% in 2009 to 15.8% in 2010.

We have continuously achieved significant growth in our BIPV
business in 2010, revenue from BIPV increased by RMB250.4
million or 80.7%, from RMB310.4 million to RMB560.8 million.
The significant growth revenue is noted in both public and
commercial area, BIPV revenue from public work increased by
RMB141.6 million or 89.3% while revenue from commercial area
increased 121% to RMB260.7 million. In the past few years, the
Mainland China government launched a number of policies to
simulate the application of solar and our BIPV business recorded
a very high growth rate. We believe that the Mainland China
government will continue its aggressive plan in supporting down
stream solar application and the Group will continue to be the

winner in this area.

Gross profit for BIPV business increased by RMB85.2 million or
73.7%, from RMB115.6 million in 2009 to RMB200.8 million in
2010. During the year, we have been involved in 32 BIPV projects

and the gross margin maintained at a relatively high level at 35.8%.

2)

PEEEKGERMIZRERAT « —F—

EBENmRDW

BRERBEBEHNEFNHARE
130,200,000 B i T & 2= A R ¥
120,800,0007% © RE AKX EEIE#HH
FHRESGEREBEMAG AR
e EFRFTEH-_ZETNEN17% B
THREZZ—ZFH15.8% °

RZE—ZF FMEERREE
- ﬂl:%%%ﬂ%%?@%iﬁ' FREE
— B (LU A L K A R # 250,400,000 7T
5,80.7% * B A K # 310,400,000 7T &
= A R #560,800,0007C © £ 2 # &
MEEFHYREEELER K AH
ITREOERBE-—BERAERAR
141,600,000 7T 5(89.3% * M K B
EmEBEHRALRI2ZI%ZE AR
260,700,0007C ° FEB AT - FE K
BoE ERRT HE Y 2 THIER BB FE PR K [  -
E UL B PR S RS — B (L XTS5 ER15
FERNEERE - ZMRAR PEX
Be AT % & 4 BB TR AT S 15 T B AR5 A8
FER - MASE T HEE R EEH
B °

HREZE-BLEBNENERARE
85,200,0007T8k73.7% * H=EZFNF
AR 11560000 EE—F—%F
F 1 A R #200,800,0007T © F A - K
P28 32EL N2 EE—F8(LTER - EF
KARFF35.8% BB KT o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREN WD

3)

Sales of goods increased by 167%, from RMB170.5 million in
2009 to RMB455.6 million in 2010. Sale of goods comprise sale of

conventional curtain wall materials and sale of solar related goods.

Sale of conventional curtain wall materials increased by RMB163.0
million or 165%. We are changing our marketing strategies and
now we are more focusing on developing the material sale market,
in order to spare more skilled workers for BIPV installation.
Therefore, sale of conventional curtain wall materials recorded
a significant growth. The gross profit from sale of conventional
curtain wall materials increased by RMB29.9 million or 138%, from
RMB21.7 million to RMB51.6 million. Gross profit margin in 2010
was 19.7% (2009: 21.9%).

Sale of solar related goods increased by RMB122.1 million or
170%. In 2009, sale of solar related goods mainly comprise sale
of BIPV materials. Other solar products, like solar street lamp and
solar thermal system were still in initial testing and development
stage and little revenue was recorded. In 2010, solar thermal
system and solar street lamp became our revenue driver for sale of
solar related goods. Total revenue from solar thermal system and
solar street lamp in 2010 was RMB124 million and RMB34 million,
respectively. At the same time, demand for BIPV related materials
maintained stable. Overall gross profit from sale of solar related
goods also increased by RMB37.5 miillion or 147%, from RMB25.5
million to RMB63 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The directors of the Group believed that solar related goods will be
the next important revenue driver. In 2010, apart from solar street
lamp and solar thermal system, we also successfully completed the
research and development of solar air-conditioning system, pre-
fabricated solar powered houses and smart grid system. We have
already secured a contract in Nigeria which worth US$13 million
to supply pre-fabricated solar powered house with the concept of

smart grid technologies.

Revenue from solar related business was about 42.3% of the
Group’s total revenue in 2010 (2009: 30.6%), and the gross profit
contribution from solar related business in 2010 was 60.3% (2009:
48.1%). The Group will continue to devote its resources in solar

related business in future.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains increased by RMB1.6 million or 25.2% in 2010.
It was mainly due to the receipt of government subsidy of RMB5 million

during the year.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Selling and distribution costs increased by RMB10.3 million or 53.7%. It
was because of the increase in business volume and the increase in the
effort in marketing and promotion of the Group’s image and products. It
was also due to the increase in man power and hence more staff costs

were recorded in selling and distribution costs.

ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

Administrative costs increased by RMB27.6 million or 32.1%. There are
several factors for the increment. Administrative costs consist of staff
costs, share option expense, research and development expense, etc.

The increase is consistent with the increase in business.

During the year, to further enhance our commitment in renewable energy
area, we have invested approximately RMB10 million in researching solar
energy products, most of them are through co-operating agreement with

famous universities inside Mainland China.

BEEN WD
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWE DN

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by RMB5.9 million. Total bank loans increased
by RMB344.3 million. The increase in bank loans were mainly used to
finance the daily operation of the Group, and to prepare to increase the

operating scale in the Hunan factory.

INCOME TAX

BME XA

BB R AIE AN AR5 5,900,000 7T © $RITE K
HBFRIE AR ¥ 344,300,000 7T © FRIEANAHIER
TERTERRAKEZ BEEF - RGN
FARES ) 2B R

Frig®t

EHIFEH - P EXE

Current-Mainland China

— Charge for the year —FARX 52,582 22,681
Current — Hong Kong SHMEH B8

— Charge for the year —FRRZ - 158
Deferred IRIE 12,394 7,505
Total tax charge for the year FRASHAS 2% 64,976 30,344

Income tax increased by RMB34.6 million. Effective tax rate of our Group
increased from 16.7% in 2009 to 23.1% in 2010. The operating tax rate
for the Company’s major operating subsidiary — Zhuhai Singyes increased
from 10% to 15% after the implementation of the new CIT law pushed up

the overall effective tax rate of the Group.

STRONG CURRENT RATIO

The current ratio being current assets over current liabilities, was 2.9 as
at 31 December 2010 (2009: 4.4).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TRADE RECEIVABLES/TRADE PAYABLES
TURNOVER DAYS

BEEN WD

FEWEZHEENESREE
=H

Trade receivables JEUNE 5508
Trade payables BN S8

Trade receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade receivables, net of impairment,
for the year divided by the revenue during the year and multiplied by
the number of days during the year. Trade receivables turnover days
at 31 December 2010 was 139 days. Trade payables turnover days is
calculated based on the average of the beginning and ending balance of
trade payables for the year divided by the cost of sales during the year.
Trade payables turnover days at 31 December 2010 was 19 days, which
is similar to our Group’s past operating record. The increase in trade
receivables turnover day was due to the late receipt from some of our
customers. The Group has reviewed the past transaction records and the
creditability of those customers and we believed that the outstanding debt

could be recovered and hence no provision for bad debt was made.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s primary source of funding included the cashflow generated
from operating activities and newly raised bank loans. At 31 December
2010, the Group had approximately RMB414.2 million of cash and cash
equivalents and approximately RMB476.9 million of bank loans. The
Group will continuously manage its cash outflow closely and cautiously in
the coming years and dedicate to maintain a sound financial position and

improve the equity return to its shareholders.

139 128
19 21
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HERFEY R FERGHNFHEMBRRE - &
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NN E 55O F 9 R F RGBT
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FRABHRN_FT-TF+_A=+t—05%
190 BAKEBEZEDHRMEE - B
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@ - Dk 3 VR AR o
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MERMBETER  RZT—TF+=
A=+—8 A"&EBEBEReKEEEDWLD
AR #414,200,0007T & IRITE KL AR
476,900,0007C ° AEBEERREFIGEBER
TREBEHERROTE - EIFBEMBEMKRT
AR FHRR SR E N A B R

FREEEABERMIZRERAT « —T—TFFH 29



~ i

RN D( DO DA DG

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWE DN

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy level in
order to support the growth of our business. Gearing ratio is derived by
dividing total bank loans by total assets. The Group’s gearing ratio at 31
December 2010 was 27.5% (2009: 11.8%).

With the continuous positive cash inflow generated from its operations
and its existing cash resources and available banking facilities obtained
from its bankers, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its

commitments and working capital requirements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
amounted to approximately RMB224.9 million. They mainly represented
the construction work of the new factory premises in Hunan, and the

addition in building and machinery.

BORROWINGS AND BANK FACILITIES

The outstanding borrowings comprised bank loans of RMB476.9 million
with effective interest rates ranging from Hong Kong Inter Bank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) + 0.95% t0 5.31%.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had total banking facilities of
RMB947.9 million. At 31 December 2010, we have utilised RMB476.9 as
bank loans and RMB46.8 million were utilised as trade financing activities
(including letter of credits, bills, performance bond etc). The remaining
banking facilities comprise of RMB27.1 million of bank loan limit and

RMB397.1 million limit for arranging trade financing.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the

units’ functional currency.

30 china Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010

REFBREREEE B B RRIFNIBRK
T AETRBMOEBER - BEABBHLXT)
BRIRITERBERAEELTESE - AEEN
EEARBLENR=-Z—ZF+=-A=+—HA
27.5% (ZEZENF 1 11.8%) °

HRSENKEXBRELRSRE - LR
BRREERIKBRITHOMERE - AEHE
BERARMBERBNEAREREEESHFE

BEAXXH

BE_Z-TFT-_A=+—RHLFE £&%
EE’\J§$§H:'IZ%%"]/\E’%2Z4,9OO,OOOTE =
ZARHREHNBE SRR TR RRERT I
= o

BERRITEE

18

H

i Fﬁa

EEEBIERITERARE 476,900,000
7T BERFENFEERITREIIREIMN0.95%
%£531%°

\

RZZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H" Zl&%ﬁﬁ{é
EwmrE A AR 947,900,0007C c A=
F+=ZA=+—8" ¢§%.E§bﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁ§w\
AR 467,900,000 T NE SR EEE (6
FEERE - HE BHORBLZ)HAARE
46,800,000 7T © 82 FHISRITIE B BIFRITER
[RE8AR¥E 27,100,000 R ZHEE %mﬂﬁf‘ﬁ%ﬁ
AR 397,100,000 7T °

NS B

AEESRZHEERR - ZFRBKE AL
BERHTE bgﬁ%&ﬁ'\\%ﬁ%f’ﬁﬂiﬂ‘]ﬁf‘aﬁ °



Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$ and US$ exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). There

is no impact on the Group’s equity.

BEEN WD

TRMBARETRETERHTRRE - 1
HSBRETEOBERT - HAKEREE
A ORBANER (LR S EERAEZD
FEERD) NRBEH T - AEERELSE

=5 I | By 488
ZE|FE

2010 —E-TF

If RMB weakens against HK$ i AREE W TR B
If RMB strengthens against HK$ fig ARHE B T HHE
If RMB weakens against US$ AR HETTIE
If RMB strengthens against US$ fig ARHE T HHE

CREDIT RISK

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade and other receivables, investments and other financial assets
represent our maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. Substantially all of our cash and cash equivalents are held
in major financial institutions located in the PRC and Hong Kong,
which management believes are of high credit quality. We trade only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is our policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and our exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Moreover, as our exposure is spread over a diversified portfolio of

customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
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BEENWE DN

LIQUIDITY RISK

We monitor its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity
planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its financial
instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations. Our liquidity is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and through

the settlement from customers and the payment to vendors.

DIVIDEND

The Directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of RMB0.03
per share (2009: RMBO0.03 per share). The Company did not declare an
interim dividend in 2010 (2009: RMBO0.02 per share). The Company is in
rapid expansion stage, the actual dividend payout ratio in each year will
be according to the actual performance of the Group, the general industry

and economic environment.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from 24 May 2011 to 26 May
2011, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the recommended final
dividend for the purpose of ascertaining the members’ entitlement to the
attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
all share transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Investor Services Limited
at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2011.

Cheques for final dividend (subject to approval in the annual general
meeting mentioned above) will be dispatched to the shareholders of the

Company on or before 15 June 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had about 1,072 employees.
Employee salary and other benefit expenses increased to approximately
RMB55 million in 2010 from approximately RMB28.3 million in 2009,
which represented an increase of 94.3%. This is because we have
recruited a lot of talents to meet the expansion of our Group in 2010
and the increase in salary level of our existing employees. The Group’s
remuneration policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees, which will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart from
provident fund scheme (according to the provisions of Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes for Hong Kong employees) or the state-
managed retirement pension scheme (for PRC employees) and medical
insurance, discretionary bonus are also awarded to employees according

to the assessment of individual performance.

BEEN WD
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSREERE

The table below sets forth information regarding our Directors:

Name Age Position

Liu Hongwei 47 Chairman and executive Director

Sun Jinli 47 Deputy Chairman, and executive Director

Xie Wen 45 Executive Director

Lin Xiaofeng 38 Non-executive Director

Cao Zhirong 37 Non-executive Director

Wang Ching 56 Independent non-executive Director

Yick Wing Fat, 53 Independent non-executive Director
Simon

Cheng Jinshu 58 Independent non-executive Director

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Liu Hongwei aged 47, is the Chairman and an executive Director of our
Company.

He joined our Group since August 1995. He is responsible for the
formulation and execution of our Group’s overall business strategies and
policies as well as the overall management of our Group. Mr. Liu has
more than twelve years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector
and more than 16 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering
sector. After obtaining a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1986
from Wuhan Industrial University, now known as Wuhan University
of Technology, majoring in inorganic materials engineering, Mr. Liu
worked at a state-owned glass manufacturing enterprise, Shaanxi Glass
Factory, as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1991, Mr. Liu was
the director of production department at another glass manufacturing
enterprise, Zhuhai Glass Factory. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Liu Hongwei
was the manager of the operation department of Zhuhai Singyes Safety
Glass. In 1995, Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass jointly established Zhuhai
Singyes Green Building Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes”, formerly
known as Zhuhai Singyes Curtain Wall Engineering Co., Ltd) with Zhuhai
City Township Enterprise. Since November 2003, Mr. Liu has been
an executive Director of our Company. From August 1995 to October
2007, Mr. Liu was appointed as Zhuhai Singyes’s general manager,

taking charge of general supervising and controlling on technologies. In
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Directors and Senior Management

December 2000, Mr. Liu was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by
the Guangdong Province Construction Bureau. In January 2001, Mr. Liu
was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of construction materials by
the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. In 2003, Mr. Liu became
an adjunct professor of Wuhan University of Technology. In August
2004, Mr. Liu was appointed as one of the experts to the Standardisation
Technical Committee of the PRC Ministry of Construction for Curtain
Walls, Doors and Windows. Mr. Liu is currently a member of the Zhuhai
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr.
Liu is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is the controlling

shareholder of the Company.

Sun Jinli aged 47, is our Deputy Chairman and an executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for formulating
the overall sales and marketing strategies of our Group. Mr. Sun has more
than nine years’ experience in the glass manufacturing sector and more
than 16 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. After
obtaining a bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 1986 from Wuhan
Industrial University, now known as Wuhan University of Technology,
majoring in inorganic materials engineering, Mr. Sun worked at Beijing
Electronics Factory as a technician until 1989. From 1989 to 1995, Mr.
Sun was the manager of the production department of Zhuhai Singyes
Safety Glass. From August 1995 to January 2001, Mr. Sun was a project
manager of Zhuhai Singyes, responsible for the development and
management of business projects. From January 2001 to October 2007,
Mr. Sun was the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes, responsible
for planning the overall sales and marketing strategy of Zhuhai Singyes
and our Group. Since March 2005, Mr. Sun has been an executive
Director of our Company. Since 2007, Mr. Sun has also been working as
the general manager of Singyes Renewable Energy. In December 1994,
Mr. Sun was certified as an engineer by the Guangdong Province Zhuhai
Designation Reform Committee In March 2002, Mr. Sun was certified
as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction. In
December 2007, Mr. Sun was registered as a constructor by the Ministry
of Construction. Mr. Sun is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd.

which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Xie Wen aged 45, is our executive Director.

He joined our Group in August 1995. He is responsible for supervision
at our work-sites and research and development of BIPV technologies.
Mr. Xie has more than 16 years’ experience in curtain wall engineering
sector. Mr. Xie graduated from Zhengzhou Textile Engineering College
majoring in mechanical engineering (textile machinery) in 1987. From
1987 to 1994, Mr. Xie worked at the Equipment Energy Team in Hunan
Shaoyang No. 2 Textile Machinery Factory. Mr. Xie joined Zhuhai Singyes
in August 1995 as a project manager, responsible for the development
and management of business projects of Zhuhai Singyes. From January
2003 to September 2007, Mr. Xie was the deputy general manager
of Zhuhai Singyes, in charge of technical guidance and supervision at
various worksites. In October 2007, Mr. Xie became the general manager
of Zhuhai Singyes. In December 2002, Mr. Xie was certified as a Level
1 Project Manager by the PRC Ministry of Construction. In June 2004,
Mr. Xie was certified as a senior engineer in respect of machinery by the
Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau. In February 2008, Mr. Xie was
registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry of Construction. Mr. Xie
is also a director of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which is the controlling

shareholder of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lin Xiaofeng aged 38, is our non-executive Director. He joined our Group
in April 2008. From October 2000 to May 2004, Mr. Lin was a partner
of Cyberh Science and Technology Investment Co., Ltd.. From May
2004 to now, Mr. Lin is a director of Shanghai Asset Managers Co., Ltd.
Mr. Lin obtained his master's degree in business administration from
University of South Queensland Australia in September 2007. Mr. Lin has

approximately 11 years of experience in venture capital investment.

Cao Zhirong aged 37, is our non-executive Director. He joined our
group in September 2009. Currently Mr. Cao is Director of BNP Paribas
Equities (Asia) Limited Shanghai Representative Office. Previously he
worked at ICEA Capital Limited and Wing Lung Finance Limited and
has approximately 14 years of experience in investment bank. Mr. Cao
obtained a master degree in business administration from Shanghai

University of Finance and Economics.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Ching, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of our Company in December 2008. Dr. Wang has near 20 years’
managerial experience in investment banking, securities, treasury and
asset management in the United States, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the
PRC. He was the president of Investment and Proprietary Trading Group
for Jih Sun Financial Holding Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the managing director
of JS Cresvale Securities International Limited, the managing director of
SinoPac Securities Asia Ltd. in Hong Kong, SEVP of SinoPac Securities
Co. Ltd. in Taiwan, the director of Investment Banking Department at
Standard Chartered Bank Hong Kong and the associate director of Bear
Stearns & Co. Inc., New York and Hong Kong. Dr. Wang currently is the
managing director of Shanghai International Asset Management (HK)
Co. Ltd., a licensed corporation registered with Honk Kong Securities
and Futures Commission. He is also the executive director of Shanghai
International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited, an investment
fund company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(stock code: 770). Dr. Wang obtained his master degree in business
administration from the University of Houston and Ph.D. in finance from

Columbia University in the city of New York.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Yick Wing Fat, Simon, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of our Company in December 2008. He graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration majoring in accounting. Mr. Yick has over 28
years of experience in audit, merger and acquisition, investment banking
and direct investment. He is a Fellow Member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants in England. He is currently a managing director of Sinovest
Capital Limited, principally engaged in direct investment and merger
and acquisition of enterprises in Hong Kong and China; the independent
non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of Shanghai
International Shanghai Growth Investment Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 770)), Shenzhen
Neptunus Interlong Bio-technique Limited (a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8329)), and
China-Biotics, Inc., (a company listed on the Nasdaqg Global Market in the
USA). He was also an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Travelsky Technology Limited (a Company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code 696)) when he was
subject to retirement until 16 March 2010.

Cheng Jinshu, aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of our Company in December 2008. Mr. Cheng
is the professor director of Science and Technology Division and director
of the Green Construction Material & Manufacture Project Research
Institute of Ministry of Education of Wuhan University of Technology. He
was the vice-dean of Material Project Department, vice-dean of Material
College and vice-director of Silicate Material Project, key laboratory of
the Ministry of Education of Wuhan University of Technology. Mr. Cheng
graduated from the Hubei Construction Industry College, now known as
Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in glass fiber in September
1976. Mr. Cheng has 33 years’ education and academic research

experience relating to construction materials.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Xiong Shi, aged 47, is the Chief Engineer of our Group. He is responsible
for the research and development of technology. He has approximately
12 years of experience in the glass manufacturing sector and 16 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Xiong joined our
Group as a project manager in August 1995. From November 2001, Mr.
Xiong assumed the position of Chief Engineer of Zhuhai Singyes until
August 2007. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xiong was the manager of
the quality testing department at Zhuhai Singyes Safety Glass from 1988
to 1995. Mr. Xiong also worked as a technical officer at a state-owned
glass manufacturing enterprise, Xiangfan City Glass Factory, from 1986
to 1988. Mr. Xiong was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC
Ministry of Construction in December 2000. Mr. Xiong was certified as a
senior engineer in respect of construction materials by the Guangdong
Province Personnel Bureau in December 2001. Mr. Xiong obtained
a bachelor’s degree in engineering from Wuhan Industrial University,
now known as Wuhan University of Technology, majoring in inorganic
materials engineering in July 1986. In December 2007, Mr. Xiong was

registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry of Construction.

Zhuo Jianming, aged 50, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai
Singyes. He has approximately 11 years’ experience in the curtain wall
engineering sector. He joined our Group as project manager in February
2000. From January 2001, Mr. Zhuo assumed the position of deputy
general manager of production of Zhuhai Singyes. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Zhuo was certified as a Level 1 Project Manager by the PRC
Ministry of Construction in March 2002. Mr. Zhuo obtained a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and construction from Xi'an Jiaotong University in
1983.
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Zhao Feng, aged 45, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai Singyes
since August 2007. He is also a director of Zhuhai Singyes. He joined
our Group as a sales and marketing manager in December 2002. He
has approximately 10 years of experience in the construction sector and
approximately 9 years’ experience in the curtain wall engineering sector.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhao worked as an engineer of Hubei
Province Shashi Construction Materials Scientific Research Institute from
1987 to 1995. Mr. Zhao was certified as a Senior Engineer in respect of
construction materials by the Guangdong Province Personnel Bureau in
December 2004. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering
from Wuhan Industrial University, now known as Wuhan University of
Technology, majoring in materials science in July 1987. Mr. Zhao became
the general manager of Zhuhai Singyes Renewable Energy Co., Ltd, and

responsible for managing its daily operation.

Wang Zhijun, aged 35, is the chief financial officer of our Company
since May 2008. He has 10 years of experience in financial accounting.
He joined Zhuhai Singyes as a financial accountant in September 1998
immediately after he graduated from Qingdao University. From 2002
to 2006, Mr. Wang acted as the chief accountant of the accounting
department of Zhuhai Singyes and became the financial manager of
Zhuhai Singyes in June 2006. Mr. Wang qualified as a registered assistant
accountant in the PRC in August 1999.

Zhang Chao, aged 38, is the operating general manager of Zhuhai
Singyes. Mr. Zhang joined our Group in December 2002 as the manager
of the business department of Zhuhai Singyes. He has approximately 10
years of experience in the construction sector and approximately 9 years’
experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Qigihaer Railway Transportation Employee University majoring in
industry and civil construction in July 1995. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Zhang worked as a construction budgeteer at Heilongjiang Province
Hei He City Railway (Group) Company from 1995 to 2002. In January
2006, Mr. Zhang was certified as a constructor by the Guangdong
Province Personnel Bureau. Mr. Zhang was also certified as a National
Construction Appraiser by the Construction Department in 2003 and
construction engineer by Zhuhai Personnel Bureau in 2005. In December
2007, Mr. Zhong was registered as a constructor by the PRC Ministry of
Construction.
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Directors and Senior Management

Luo Duo, aged 32, is the chief engineer of Zhuhai Singyes. She joined
our Group as a designer in July 2001. She has approximately 10 years
of experience in the curtain wall engineering sector. Ms. Luo worked as
the vice-director of design institute of Zhuhai Singyes from November
2004 to December 2006 and the director of design institute from January
2007 to January 2008. In February 2008 she was appointed as the chief
engineer of Zhuhai Singyes. Ms. Luo was certified as a Class 2 Registered
Structural Engineer by the PRC Ministry of Construction in January 2005.
Ms. Luo was certified as a Plan-Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel
Bureau in February 2008. Ms. Luo obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Construction Engineering from Qingdao Construction Engineery College in
July 2001.

Liang Bingqiang, aged 33, is the deputy general manager of Zhuhai
Singyes and responsible for the development of the overseas market.
He has more than 11 years of experience in the curtain wall engineering
sector. He joined our Group as a designer in April 2002. Mr. Liang
worked as the director of design department of Zhuhai Singyes Beijing
representative office from July 2004 to July 2006 and he worked for
Zhongshan Shengxing Curtain Wall Company Ltd from August 2000 to
March 2002. In August 2006, he was appointed as the manager of the
photo-electricity business department of Zhuhai Singyes. In April 2008,
he was appointed as the deputy general manager of Singyes Renewable
Energy. Mr. Liang was certified as an Assistant Engineer by the
Zhongshan Personnel Bureau in October 2001. Mr. Liang was certified
as a Construction Design Engineer by the Zhuhai Personnel Bureau in
January 2006. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in construction
engineering from Tianjin Institute of Urban Construction in July 2000.

YU Chon Man, aged 33, was appointed as the financial controller,
qualified accountant and company secretary of our Company in June
2008. He is responsible for financial reporting and general investor
affairs of our Company. He has approximately 10 years of experience in
financial accounting. Mr. Yu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining us, he had approximately
seven years of working experience with international audit firms and was
mainly responsible for financial auditing, internal control reporting and
compliance advisory. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor’s degree (Hons) in accountancy in 2001.

COMPANY SECRETARY

YU Chon Man, is our company secretary. For further details regarding Mr.
Yu, please see the paragraph headed “Senior Management” above.

EERENEERE

B 3255 AWHEELTIRM - R T
T—FELAMAREEEERE - BRAEE
TIRERERNIOFLR - BT B -TTN
F+—RAE_ZTEXRF+-AEMHRGHEES
ARBRESE A-TTEF—AETTN
F-AEAREERFRIBEEES - NZTZT
NEZR - REZ(TAKERERTIZN - 2
ZIRZTERF— AETEESBETAS
WEMEB TR - BLLR_TT)\F_A
BRET AR AFE - BT IREM - 1
—TE-F+ A BULIETERETIRZER
EETRBLEM -

RIRE - 335% - ARWEEERRKIE  AFH
RIGINTIS - BN TIRBEEER11FKE
B R -ST_FAMARNEEETR:
filo REAEB -_TTENFLAE ST F+
RIEAHREEEL TR ERMEEDF LT -
R-BEEBENAZ BT _F= NP LK
EEEERARIE - RZTZFENA - #
BEZIRWEHENBTEBKILE - RZTZ
NFMA - FEZTAFEEFERIBEE -
REERZBZT—F+AEFRLTASZRET
BEIETREM - R_TTRF—F - R4k
AT AERET AEERT IR - KT
TEF+ ARG ERREHMERSERIE T2

SRS -

RER - 335 RCETN\FRNARZAERK
RAMFRE AEREFERATWE - W
BEARARMBRRE —RIREESEE - BN
MBS T EEANIOFER - REEREE
B A EEREH ARG AGERE
8 - RIMAKREER - KEBH7 FRRE
EBMTELS  TEABRMBER - NEbE
BEHRERERER - RR_ZT—FEERE
BETARE  HASHERES LB -

DEWE
RIEHEATARDRNE - HHRRLEN
E—SHHE B2M X[ BREBAR] —

B

PEEEKGERMIZRERAF « — T TFFH

41



Report of the Directors
EEEREE

The directors (the “Directors”) of China Singyes Solar Technologies
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure to present the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 24 October 2003 as
an exempted company with limited liability. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda. The Company has established a principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Unit 3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun
Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, and was
registered with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as an oversea
company under Part XI of the Companies Ordinance on 29 August 2008.
Mr. Yu Chon Man has been appointed as the authorised representative
of the Company for the acceptance of service of process and notices on

behalf of the Company in Hong Kong.

As the Company is incorporated in the Bermuda, the operation of
the Company is subject to the Companies Law and to its constitution

comprising a memorandum of association and the bye-laws.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is a
professional renewable energy system integrator and building contractor,
it is principally engaged in the design, fabrication and installation of
conventional curtain walls and BIPV systems. The BIPV system involves
(i) the integration of photovoltaic technology into the architectural
design of buildings and structures and (ii) conversion of solar energy
into electricity for use. In addition, the Group also engage in the
production and sale of solar-power products, including smart grid system,
prefabricated solar houses, solar thermal system and solar street lamp.
The Group’s principal operating market is in Mainland China. The Group
also exploring potential markets in the Middle East Asia, Singapore and

Macau.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note
17 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s top five customers are the main contractors of various public
or commercial BIPV or curtain wall projects. In aggregate, the largest
and top five customers did not exceed 10% and 30% of the Group’s total

revenue in 2010 respectively.

The Group currently outsources part of the construction works for various
sub-contractors in the PRC, as well as sourcing PV penal, aluminum
and glass from suppliers inside the PRC. In 2010, the top five suppliers
include material suppliers and sub-contractors, sub-contracting fees
paid or material purchase to its largest and five largest sub-contractors
were about 10.7% and 35.2% of the Group’s total cost of sale in 2010

respectively.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major suppliers and/or customers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries which principally affect the
results as at 31 December 2010 are set out in note 17 to the financial

statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the
Company’s and the Group’s financial positions as at the same date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 58 to 156. The Directors
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2010 of RMBO0.03 per share (2009: RMBO0.03 per share). The
Company did not pay an interim dividend (2009: RMB0.02 per share).

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the Company

has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserve of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 60 of the annual report and in note 32 to the financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Final dividend amounting to RMB14,727,000 was declared by reduction
in distributable reserve. As at 31 December 2010, the Company's
reserves available for distribution calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the applicable law of Bermuda, amounting to RMB723,000.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS

Particulars of interest bearing bank loans of the Group as at 31 December
2010 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The Company has
redeemed 100,000 shares of the Company in the open market at a price
of HK$3.35 per share on 27 May 2010 and these 100,000 shares were
subsequently been cancelled on 18 June 2010.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable donation totalling
RMB703,000.

44 china Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2010

(E4i

ARERA R TR ERGRBEDHEED AR
RERECORS AR EDE LI BREN
32

A IR fE

RHIR B AR 14,727 000 T E LAHIBS AR
BHABE - R-F-FF A=A
REGFBERDEE GRS - ARATHD
IR AR 723,0007T

ff S ERITERK

FEER-_Z—ZF+ -_A=+—HNOMER
TTERFHE - SRMIBHMERME28 -

% - BERRE

WEB I - S MR DA R EL (B B RO RIS
NG WAL LS -

€N

RRBFERRABEHFE - SR BRI
F30 ARBRZE—ZEFRA-FTEAER
™% A &A% 3.35 B L& | 100,000 AN A &)
Z B - 52100,000 KK HEER R T —FF
NATNABHEUH °

HEEX

AEERAFEEZER/ARKE703,0007T



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last 5 financial years is set out on page 4 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Hongwei
Mr. SUN Jinli

Mr. XIE Wen

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LIN Xiaofeng
Mr. Cao Zhirong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Dr. WANG Ching

Mr. YICK Wing Fat, Simon

Mr. CHENG Jinshu

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Liu
Hongwei, Mr. Xie Wen and Mr. Cheng Jinshu are required to retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Each of the above
Directors will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of 3 years, which is renewable automatically for
successive terms of 3 years each commencing from the day immediately
after the expiry of the then current term of the appointment unless
terminated by not less than 3 months’ notice in writing served by either
party. Each of the non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of
three years, which is renewable automatically for successive terms of
1 year each commencing from the day next after the expiry of the then
current term of the appointment unless terminated by not less than 2
months’ notice in writing served by either party. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years which is
terminable by either party by giving the other party not less than 2 months’
prior notice in writing. None of the Directors has a service agreement with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company and by reference to the remuneration policies

of other companies in similar capacity and the experience of the directors.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2008, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, the
board of Directors (the “Board”) may at its discretion, offer eligible
persons (being any Director or employee (whether full-time or part-time),
consultant or advisors of the Group who in the sole discretion of the Board
has contributed or will contribute to the Group) (the “Eligible Persons”)
who the Board may in its absolute discretion select to subscribe for such
number of Shares as the Board may determine at a subscription price

determined in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.
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Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme s to provide incentive or reward
to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Group and for such other purposes as the

Board may approve from time to time.

Total number of Shares available under the Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 16,986,666
Shares, representing 3.46% of the Company’s issued share capital as
at the date of this report. 25,680,000 options with the exercise price of
HK$4.30 per Share have been granted under the Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2009. And 6,000,000 options with
the exercise price of HK$3.33 per Share have been granted during the
year ended 31 December 2010. Please refer to note 31 of the financial
statement, for the year ended 31 December 2010 for details of the options

granted.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each Eligible Person in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1.0% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options in
excess of this 1.0% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by
the Company and the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting
with such Eligible Persons and his associate (as defined in the Listing
Rules) abstaining from voting and the number and terms (including
the subscription price) of such options being fixed before such general
meeting and other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from

time to time.
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Time of exercise of option

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the Board is empowered
to impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant
of any particular option. The Board is currently unable to determine such
minimum period. The date of grant of any particular option is the date on
which the offer relating to such option is duly accepted by the grantee in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme. An option may be exercised
according to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the offer in whole
or in part by the grantee (or his personal representatives) before its expiry
by giving notice in writing to our Company stating that the option is to be
exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised
provided that the number of Shares shall be equal to the size of a board
lot for dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple
thereof. Such notice must be accompanied by a remittance for the full
amount of the subscription price for the Shares in respect of which the
notice is given. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no option
may be exercised more than 10 years from the date of grant. No option
may be granted more than 10 years after the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme by

Shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.

Price of Shares

The subscription price for a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon
exercise of the option) shall be such price as the Board shall determine,
save that such price must not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of offer to grant option, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer to grant option (provided that the new issue
price shall be used as the closing price for any business day falling
within the period before the listing of the Shares where our Company
has been listed for less than five business days as at the date of offer to
grant option); and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A consideration of

RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of an offer of the grant of an option.
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Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting, or the Board may at
any time terminate the operation of the Share Option Scheme and in
such event no further option will be offered but in all other respects the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
and options granted prior to such termination shall continue to be valid

and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

There was no exercise of any conversion or subscription rights under any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted
at any time by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their respective associate (as defined under the
Listing Rules) was granted by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, any
rights or options to acquire Shares or debentures during the year ended
31 December 2010.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has re-purchased 100,000 shares of the Company in the
open market at a price of HK$3.35 per share on 27 May 2010 and these
100,000 shares were subsequently been cancelled on 18 June 2010.
The re-purchase was effected by the Directors for the enhancement of the
shareholder value in long term. Saved as disclosed above, the Company and
its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any listed securities of the

Company during the year.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF
THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2010, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates had the

following interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

Report of the Directors
EEEREE

BT EIERT F 5

ARBAIRBRRAGBBRAARIHEEGHE
PR I ERER T BIREE - RRTEBRILE
Pt - HERBRMERT BIFTA EMRENAZEA
MM AR o RERHERT &1 4% LE AT h ey BB AR A 1))
AeBA N A A ARIR B AR R B T IATTAE ©

HEZZ-ZF+_A=+—HILFE &2
A 3 HAE ] B A ) A AR AR AR (E fr) AT $R AR R
7 - RBROE - REEE ST ARHES HTHE
R BN TR (TR R RIEE -

EERBRONESHER

HE-Z-ZF+_A=+—HILFE  #E
EEYREREBEAL(EER LHRA)E
AN B SR EAL I P B 1 R T AR SR AR
REARBR M HES -

BE HEIERALAT LD
Gk

R-ZZF-FFAA-+ER  ARFERARAM
% bA I 3.35 78 JT HY {8 4% [@ #E 100,000 A A%
7+ &% % 100,000 AL H BE R Y — T —F4F
ANATABTLAGSH - BEXEREINRIR
REENTE - R LAWES - NAF REH
BARRSHMERE HEIWERAREE
fa] ERESs ©

EERADTAETETHAERA
DRI EMEEERN R - AHE
RORBESNERERER

RZZE—ZEF+_RA=+—H BE=ME -
EERARAEBTHRARRREOBEAL
RARB REABEE(ERABHF MK

HEEEABERIHERERAR « — 224453 49



Report of the Directors
EEEREE

the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of the BI([FEHREEED ) R G « R, &
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required to be BEHPHEA () REBEES RAEEOIEXVEET
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 MESDERBME AN R MBS TR (R
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which RIEFE S M E IO X E GRS E (EaiaR
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or BRENERIAR) (i) BEFEARNMPE
(i) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the {6 55 352 1678 BR8N RZ AR FIT I 1) & Bo il A 4

register referred to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to the Model o N BELMBETAESETELRRS
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model ROIRZEEST R ([TR2ESFRI]) 7B AN A A B B A2
Code”) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange: FrEfEzS a0 T

Mr. Liu Hongwei Company Interest of a controlled Long 196,666,899 40.06%
BATHE S PIN/NE] corporation ! &B
RPAE R
Company Beneficial interest 2 Long 1,150,000 0.23%
ZN/NS]| B2 RE
Sub-total: Long 197,816,899 40.30%
It RE
Zhuhai Singyes Beneficial interest Long N/A 21.43%
Green Building oy diny &E TEA
Technology

Co. Ltd (formerly
Zhahai Singyes
Curtain Wall
Engineering Co. Ltd)
REEEGEREE
BHEBERAT
(AITEER G I 3 R
TIRAERAT)

Zhuhai Singyes Interest of a controlled Long N/A 75%
Green Building corporation 3 9 TEA
Technology AR 3
Co. Ltd (formerly
Zhahai Singyes
Curtain Wall
RGEIEG B R
BHEBERAT
(RITEER G S 3 R i
TRAERAT)
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Mr. Sun Jinli Company Beneficial interest 2 Long
Raets ZAN/N Bk 2 rE
Zhuhai Singyes Beneficial interest Long
Green Building EmiEm EE
Technology
Co. Ltd
R ERE
REZER AT
Mr. Xie Wen Company Beneficial interest 2 Long
X /NG| Bt ? rE
Mr. Lin Xiaofeng Company Beneficial interest 2 Long
T e ZN/NS| Bl 2 RE
Mr. Wang Ching Company Beneficial interest 2 Long
ERELE /NG| Bt ? rE
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, ~ Company Beneficial interest 2 Long
Simon RAT] B 2 =1
SKE A
Mr. Cheng Jinshu Company Beneficial interest 2 Long
X bt RAT] Bt 2 rA
Notes:

1. These 196,666,899 Shares are held by Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. whose share
capital is 53% owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei. Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be
interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO.

2. Such interests represent the options of the Company held by the relevant
Directors.
3. Mr. Liu Hongwei controls more than one-third of the voting power at general

meetings of Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. which in turn holds 45.81% of the Shares.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Liu Hongwei is deemed to be interested in the 75%
interest in Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology Co. Ltd indirectly held by
the Company.

1,150,000 0.23%
N/A 3.57%
TEA

1,150,000 0.23%
200,000 0.04%
200,000 0.04%
200,000 0.04%
200,000 0.04%

GEX

1. 7% 196,666,899 % %17 M Strong Eagle Holdings
Ltd. #%F -+ i 241 4 5t 4 ¥ B Strong Eagle
Holdings Ltd. B2 53% © RIEFEH RIEE
Bl - BIATHE SR AR RN SR P R -

2. RERDNERERIENARBBRE

3. 24T 4 52 A 7AStrong Eagle Holdings Ltd. B E K
HEH =52 — A RIS - MStrong Eagle
Holdings Ltd. #8250 1145.81% © IZBES K
HRE M - BIATHE SR EBAR B RIFTRI B
BB EEGEREARKER DA 75% Ex
hEERER -
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INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, so far as the Directors are aware, save as
disclosed above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or a
chief executive of the Company) who have interest or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise
notified to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member
of the Group and the amount of each of such persons’ interest in such
securities, together with any options in respect of such capital, were as

follows:

EBERRNIRMD - HERGRE
FHNESRER

RZZE—ZEF+RA=+—H BE=ME -
B EXEEESN  WTATZOEE (LIFEAR
AEFRERITRAR) RAQ AN MAAR
Beinrh - A B RRSRIRE 7 M BRI
BHAFENB LM ERLER - FIRE
EHLEBIRPIZEXVESE 2 K 35 802 16X A
AARBREZ EmoRR » REERIEEE
B SR R IMEA ISR T AR B A E A
B RRZBRAE LIRE 2 EAERI AT
B10% A E#Es - MERFEATEBER%ZE
ERHERERHE  BEREEREFRAS R
2B ¢

Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. !

Long position
RE EnBEAA

1. Strong Eagle Holdings Ltd. is owned by Mr. Liu Hongwei, Mr. Sun Jinli, Mr. Xie
Wen, Mr. Xiong Shi, Mr. Zhuo Jianming, Mr. Li Huizhong, and Ms. Jing Renying
as to 53%, 15%, 8%, 8%, 8%, 4% and 4% respectively.

NON-COMPETITION

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart
from the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either

directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is

actual or potential conflict in interest.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2010.

No contract of significance in which a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year ended 31 December 2010.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by our controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2010, there was no transaction
which needs to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

No transactions as set out in the “Related party transactions” in
note 37(a) to the financial statements are subject to the reporting,
announcement and/or independent shareholders’ approval under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the law of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company

is incorporated.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listing Issuer as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Upon the enquiry made by the Company all Directors confirmed that
they had complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2010.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual

report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 19 December 2008
with terms of references adopted on 19 December 2008 in compliance
with the Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of
the audit committee are the three independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon, an independent non-executive Director, is
the Chairman of the audit committee. The audit committee is to serve
as a focal point for communication between other directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit function exists)
of the Company as regards their duties relating to financial and other
reporting, internal controls, external and internal audits and such other
financial and accounting matters as the Board determines from time
to time. The audit committee is to assist the Board in providing an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management system of the Group, overseeing
the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities as
may be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee
has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group. For further details of the audit committee
and other committees of the Board, please refer to the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” from pages 9 to 17.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital of the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the Stock
Exchange, based on the information that is publicly available to the

Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 January 2011, the Group received a notice in respect of government
subsidy of a 20MW roof top solar form project on the Company’s new
Human factory plant with total amount of RMB134,850,000 of which
RMB50,000,000 has been received by the Group on 19 January 2011.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive

Directors to be independent.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been audited
by Ernst & Young which will retire, and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the

Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
By order of the Board
LIU Hongwei

Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March, 2011

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B AR S

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
£
To the shareholders of

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 156,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
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Independent Auditors’ Report

assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18th Floor
Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2011
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Year ended 31 December 2010
HE-Z—ZHF+-_A=+—HLLFE

I D[ DDA DADA

BN DI DD DI DA

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE ARET T AREBTTT

REVENUE ON 4 1,782,447 1,247,355
Cost of sales SHER AR (1,344,865) (953,920)
Gross profit EF 437,582 293,435
Other income and gains H AU A R Uz 5 7,716 6,162
Selling and distribution costs SHE & SHA AR (29,485) (19,178)
Administrative expenses TBAX (113,667) (86,049)
Other expenses HEiAx (6,551) (4,657)
Finance costs REE AR 7 (14,121) (8,202)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A% A& A 6 281,474 181,511
Income tax expense S i 10 (64,976) (30,344)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F N A 216,498 151,167
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hth2mEEE
Exchange differences on translation of MEGINERHIE X =5

foreign operations (548) (277)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AEE 2K EE5E

INCOME FOR THE YEAR 215,950 150,890
Profit attributable to: AT ALEMERR :

Owners of the Company VINNETE Z =N 11 216,419 151,067

Non-controlling interests JEfE R = 79 100

216,498 151,167

Total comprehensive income attributable to: A T A LG 2 EIE ¢

Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZ =N 215,871 150,790

Non-controlling interests PSR TS 79 100

215,950 150,890

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ZNA Rl @ERHA A

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF FE(H ERREF|

THE COMPANY

Basic and diluted HEAREE 13 RMBO0.441 RMBO0.333

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are ~ AFE RN REZIKT 2R S F BRI HREM T
disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements. 129578 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

31 December 2010
RZF—FF+ZA=+—H

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kiat ARETT ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - B KEE 14 267,270 110,808
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS AR E IR 15 34,027 1,175
Intangible assets B AE 16 550 222
Payments in advance SEUREE 18 26,411 2,600
An available-for-sale equity investment AT ERARE 19 31,174 21,154
Total non-current assets EmBEERE 359,432 135,959
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories e 21 18,761 8,674
Construction contracts ZEAR 22 72,234 52,719
Trade receivables B E 5508 23 795,237 560,169
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FBNFUE « 514 M E (b fEWRIA 24 43,139 25,338
Equity investments at fair value FHiBB IR AN EERA
through profit or loss AR E 20 3,044 -
Pledged deposits PIRTFI 25 30,978 5,700
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREEEY 25 414,203 337,236
Total current assets mEEERE 1,377,596 989,836
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Trade and bills payables B E 5508 BN RIE 26 73,986 73,755
Other payables and accruals E e~ SR IE R FE AT IR 27 82,122 59,443
Interest-bearing bank loans M EERITER 28 299,730 79,402
Income tax payable BT FT1S L 21,018 13,632
Total current liabilities mEIAEEEE 476,856 226,232
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEZEE 900,740 763,604
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEREBERRBAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,260,172 899,563
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans M EERITER 28 177,173 53,207
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE E 29 19,899 7,505
Total non-current liabilities JEmB A ELRE 197,072 60,712
Net assets BESFE 1,063,100 838,851
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to A EHEE ABLER
owners of the Company
Issued capital B EITARA 30 33,589 33,596
Reserves (e 32 995,403 775,223
Proposed final dividend FORAREANRE 12 14,727 14,730
1,043,719 823,549
Non-controlling interests FEIERR AR 33 19,381 15,302
Total equity R BEE 1,063,100 838,851
Liu Hongwei Sun Jinli EF EZE
Director Director B4 4 meE

HEEEABERIHERERAR « —2 2443 59
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

Year ended 31 December 2010
HE-Z—ZHF+-_A=+—HLLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

OGN
Statutory ~ Enterprise Exchange Non-
Share  Confributed ~reseme  expansion Share ~ fluctuation Proposed controlling
Issued  premium  surplus* fund* fund* opion resene*  Retained final interests Total

captal  account? #A HE 29 resene  EXRE  pofits  diidend Totdl  EEE  eqily
BRRA RMEER 2% RRES  ERS BRERR BB RELN RRAERS Bt BE ERfE
(moed))  (noe32)  (ote3d)  (note32)  (moled)  (note3l) (note 33)
WEw)  HEw) R R WEv) (BE3) W2%)
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTn ARETT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETn ARETr ARETr ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR

At 1 January 2009 R-ZENE-A-A 122 1379 - 441% 14784 - 3602 2737 - A% 6102 438307
Tota comprehensiveincome.~ AEF2ENE

forthe year - - - - = = @ 151067 - 15079 100 15089
Transferfrom refained profts A RERAFIER - - - % 8% - - (W) = = = =
Issuance of shares ik 8408 235949 - - - - - - - Wy - M
Captaliation of share premium I3 REE AL B066 (25060) = = = = = = = = = =
Share issue expenses KR - UM - - - - - - - (4 - (4M
Equiysetfed shareoption ~~ AEE B RER

anangements (note 31) 231 - - - - - 03 - - -3 -0
Transfer o contributed surplus.~ EFHAAER - (40000 40000 = = = = - = = = =
Captalcontrhufonfom - F¥BAFFHERRRAME

non-controlling shareholders

of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 9,100 9,100
Interim 2009 dhvidend ZESnERERE - - 980) - - - - - - 80 - 80
Proposed fnel 2009 RIZERNERHRS

Diidend (not 12) Wz - RN 1) - - - - - - - -

At 31 December 2009 AEEBNETZA=T-B B 2033 B Bl BB 23 33 49902 70 839 1532 8388l

At 1 January 2010 W-E-2F-F-A 33506 230323 15450 62131 23751 20321 3345 419902 14730 823549 15302 838,851
Tota comprehensive income. - AEF2ENE

forthe year - - - - - - (548) 216419 - 20587 79 215950
Redemption of shres EORG m (8 - - - - - - - (294) - (294)

m

Fingl 2000 diidend declered X -SENERBRE - - - - - - - - (14730 (14730 - (14730
Equiysetfed shareoption AR B RER
anangements (note 31) 231 - - - - - 1933 - - - 1933 - 193

Transter fom retaned pofts &8558, /(3)) &\ B8 - - - 2683 134 - - (0 - - - -
Capfl contrbufonfom - VEAGT3HER:

non-contoling shareholders — REEEHE

of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - 4,000 4,000
Proposed fnel 2010 RIZE-2ERERE

diidend (note 1) Wz - - (47 - - - - - uw - - -

At 31 December 2010 HZE-SETZR=T-B 33589 230036 1723 64814 25008 39,64 2797 632296 14727 1043719 19381 1,063,100

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * SRS B ) FEAR A B IR URSH 2R 1) 4 A e A R
RMB995,403,000 (2009: RMB775,223,000) in the consolidated 995,403,000 7T (BB NEF : AR T775,223,0007T) °
statement of financial position.
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CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets
Reversal of provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables

Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Equity-settled share option expense

Transaction costs related to the listing
of existing shares

Exchange losses

Interest income

Finance costs

Increase in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in construction contracts

Increase in trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Increase in trade and bills payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Increase in prepaid land lease payments

Purchase of an available-for-
sale equity investment

Purchase of equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Increase in pledged deposits

Interest received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2010

BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—2-2F  —ZEIAS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETTT
281,474 181,511
10,435 6,555
245 66

111 35

- (407)

(26) (7)
19,323 20,306

- 570

3,276 81
(1,162) (517)
14,121 8,202
327,797 216,395
(10,087) (7,727)
(19,515) 6,076
(235,068) (244,551)
(17,801) 357
231 37,348
22,679 28,784
(45,196) (23,705)
23,040 12,977
(188,874) (62,284)
(439) (257)
(35,583) -
(10,020) (12,269)
(121,160) =
118,116 =
61 25
(25,278) (5,200)
1,162 517
(262,015) (79,468)
continued/...
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2010
HE-Z—ZHF+-_A=+—HLLFE

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARETT ARETTT

Net cash flows used in investing activities BEFERS R FE (262,015) (79,468)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BETHELENELSRE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PTISEUR - 244,357
Redemption of shares BEAR G (294) -
Capital injection by a non- IR E

controlling shareholder 4,000 9,100
Proceeds from bank loans RITERETS A 554,401 132,609
Repayment of bank loans RITERZEE (210,107) (10,000)
Share issue expenses BinEBE1THRY - (25,413)
Payment of other financing costs AT E A B E A A (2,815) (4,917)
Dividends paid ERE (14,730) (9,820)
Interest paid EAFLE (11,306) (3,285)
Net cash flows from financing activities BEEBRESRAFRE 319,149 332,631
NET INCREASE IN CASH RERASZEYE TR

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 80,174 266,140
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E’Fﬂziﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%’i% 337,236 71,440
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SHHTE  FE (3,207) (344)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBRERELEEY

AT END OF YEAR 414,203 337,236
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND REeNBSEEBNER DT

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B RIBITRA 25 414,203 249,179
Non-pledged time deposits ERRFRIHAIR=EAZ

with original maturity of less %}Rﬂﬂm,ﬁﬂﬁm

than three months when acquired 25 - 88,057

414,203 337,236
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Statement of Financial Position
B 7 iR R 3R

31 December 2010
RZF—FF+ZA=+—H

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARET T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - RS K% 14 18,014 18,717
Investments in subsidiaries AT B A R AL E 17 - =
An available-for-sale equity investment AlEHERAIEE 19 12,800 8,871
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 30,814 27,588
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUR BB A BIFRIAE 17 303,106 150,856
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREEEY 25 28,500 97,616
Total current assets mMEEERE 331,606 248 472
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Due to a subsidiary e —FEIFT B A RIFRIE 17 3,882 =
Other payables and accruals E b e 58 K FE AT FE 27 2,338 2,145
Interest-bearing bank loans M EIRITER 28 40,980 4,402
Total current liabilities mENAELREE 47,200 6,547
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 284,406 241,925
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERTBEME
CURRENT LIABILITIES 315,220 269,513
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans M EIRITER 28 80,923 13,207
Total non-current liabilities JERE A ERTE 80,923 13,207
Net assets FEE 234,297 256,306
EQUITY s
Issued capital BT 30 33,589 33,596
Reserves Ees 32 185,981 207,980
Proposed final dividend FORAREANRE 12 14,727 14,730
Total equity T AREE 234,297 256,306
Liu Hongwei Sun Jinli BE BE
Director Director B4 4% reE
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7 SR R BT &

31 December 2010
—E-THEF-A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

RAEHR

2.1

China Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in Bermuda on 24 October 2003. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Unit
3108, 31st Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Center,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
design, manufacturing, supply and installation of conventional
curtain walls and building integrated photovoltaic (“BIPV”)
system, as well as the manufacture and sale of solar power
products. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company

of the Company is Strong Eagle Holdings Limited (“Strong
Eagle”), which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1

B 2 K RS e BT AR B R A B (A2 E]])
RZZZT=F+ At mBERBREZMAKL
BERNERBREMTAA - ARAIMEMME
Rt A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° AR R]E B S
HOAUERT A B 7S T 75 R 168-200 575 2 H 18
BERAE31#Z3108F °

FRARAREMBAR (BRI AL
B ) EENEERFRICREE—BLRR
(IBIPV]) &t - 85&E - HERRE - URARK
BREMMERBEE - FA - ARETEXBH
HEWEmBREE

EERA ARANERERARARNEE
B & B B sE AKX 3Z 2 Strong Eagle Holdings
Limited ([ Strong Eagle) °

EREE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which comprise standards and interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standard Board
(the “IASB”) and International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Standing Interpretations Committee interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards
Committee that remain in effect, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain equity investments, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
R S e

31 December 2010
—2-24+-A=+-A8

2.1 EREE(E)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2010. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

meR%E

REVBRREREARRREMBARREE
—E-EFS+ A=+t -HLFENRBR
= o B AR EARABERMERE AT
WROHRA —HEAHE R - MEBEARREA
BUHE R (AIAKBEEGIEGIEZ B) BFa A
R YRESEGE AREER EZAEIRZ
BRLE - AEBARREER 5 £ER
MR ZEENARBRBE RSN EE ARE
2 ERHH o

HB AR ZERT BN IR -
BolHAaH-

B 1tk

—FHMNBRRZ B EERE LT (AU RE
KizbltE) - ARRER S AR o

A SR B K £ — M B N R 2 FE b - RUE
HIRHER () ZMBARIZEE (BEEE) K&
18~ (i) R IR A s 2 AR EE K (i) s
Wrtdk s RETERZR - RHER () IR EZ
RNFE - (i) TRBEMREZ AFER ()18
s ERRLEEZ BREEE - £RIRE
fb2ENER AR ANEBEERDEN S
BRBRsRE RN (RAEBES) -
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 1 (Revised)

IFRS 1 Amendments

IFRS 2 Amendments

IFRS 3 (Revised)

IAS 27 (Revised)

IAS 39 Amendment

IFRIC 17

Amendments to
IFRS 5 included in
Improvements
to IFRSs issued
in October 2008

Improvements to
IFRSs (April 2009)*

First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards —
Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-
based Payment — Group
Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Amendment to IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items

Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued
Operations — Plan to sell the
controlling interest in a subsidiary

Amendments to a number of
IFRSs

* The Group has adopted all the /mprovements to IFRSs issued in

April 2009 which are applicable to its operations.
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

2.2

BT A5 SRR M e

31 December 2010
—2-24+-A=+-A8

SRR REE (E)

2.3

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
IFRIC 17, the adoption of the new and revised IFRSs has had
no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

IFRIC 17 clarifies that (i) a dividend payable should be
recognised when the dividend is appropriately authorised and
is no longer at the discretion of the entity; (ii) an entity should
measure the dividend payable at the fair value of the net
assets to be distributed; and (iii) an entity should recognise
the difference between the dividend paid and the carrying
amount of the net assets distributed in profit or loss.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

2.3

BRTXHBERM G REREZESE 1777
ZEE—DHAIN - FNZE AT REEIEETE
BREA R R AR B A TS SRR I SR B R A 5
@,

BB RERERE RS VR RIELE
ETHAA
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.
IAS 32 Amendment Amendment to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues’
Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of IFRSs — Limited
Exemption from Comparative
IFRS 7 Disclosures for
First-time Adopters 2

IFRS 1 Amendment

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments ?
IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 3
IFRIC 14 Amendments Amendments to IFRIC 14
Prepayments of a Minimum

Funding Requirement 3
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 27418 15 & £ MY B R B & 3R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL LR (48)

REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 7 Amendments ~ Amendments to IFRS 7 BIfR B iss S 220 (ST SRS 2ERE
Financial Instruments: ETHRAEE] TR TR : #FE—
Disclosures — Transfers of EREPHEE
Financial Assets

IFRS 1 Amendments  Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time BRI E LR (BRI EBRMERELERFR
Adoption of IFRSs — Severe E15(EE] 155 B K ERA B BR BT 7%
Hyperinflation and Removal of LR - B EE A
Fixed Dates for First-Time AR RS B XA
Adopters HIEE A A

IAS 12 Amendments  Amendments to IAS 12 Income REEERZE 12 BRI EEERSE 1258
Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery SRIEET FrE 8 —EAEFA -
of Underlying Assets W lolEEF & 2 °

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments BIfRiss s 2R 2/ TAS°

955

Apart from the above, the IASB has issued /mprovements Br biiEsN - B S ERIREeE N = —

to IFRSs 2010 in May 2010 which sets out amendments TERARMGE - —FFERY HHREER

to a number of IFRSs primarily with a view to removing B2 - E B E T B B Ak ZE Al &Y

inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The amendments to 125]  TEZEMARBREEREERT - HEH

IFRS 3 and IAS 27 are effective for annual periods beginning BREA TSR 2 RIS 3 5% R BIPR 2 51 2E R 5E 27 57

on or after 1 July 2010 while the amendments to IFRS 1, BTN 2 —ZF A — B2 &RIRNF

IFRS 7, IAS 1, IAS 34 and IFRIC 13 are effective for annual FEEAR AR i B R B S R 5 ZE BN BB 1 55% -

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 although there RS EERE 75 - B SEERIZE L

are separate transitional provisions for each standard or 9% - BIPRSFTAERISE 34 5% M BB RS iR e

interpretation. ZEEFE I3RMEBIIAR =S —F—HA—H

R RFREFRE IR AR - HERIREA KR
BABL BRI -

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 L R-Z—TFE—- A B2 EABRNE
February 2010 FE AR AE R

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2 RZZF—ZFF+H B2 EFABNE
2010 JZ BARE A 4R

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 g REZF——F— A — B2 EFARNE
January 2011 [EHAR AR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July g R-Z——F+ A B2 EABRNE
2011 B e

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZF——F—H Az 2 &FARNE
January 2012 ER IS

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ® REZE—=F—A— Bzl ERBNF
January 2013 [EHAR AR
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
R S e

31 December 2010
—2-24+-A=+-A8

2.3 CEM{E AR E MR BRI H K
HER (&)

A=A

Further information about these changes, which are expected
to significantly affect the Group, is as follows:

IAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of
related parties. It also provides for a partial exemption of
related party disclosure to government-related entities for
transactions with the same government or entities that are
controlled, jointly controlled or significant influenced by
the same government. The Group expects to adopt IAS 24
(Revised) from 1 January 2011.

While the adoption of the revised standard will result in
changes in the accounting policy, the revised standard is
unlikely to have any impact on the related party disclosures as
the Group is not a government entity.

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.
This phase focuses on the classification and measurement
of financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets
into four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets
as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of IAS 39.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

2.3 B HEARE 1 R A R B R B 5 R
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HEER(

:l:
=]
=)

REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in IFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of IAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from |IAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”).
For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”).
The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in
profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the
Additions.

It is expected that IAS 39 will be replaced by IFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS
39 on hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets
continues to apply. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from
1 January 2013.

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs. The Group expects to
adopt all these amendments from 1 January 2011. There are
separate transitional provisions for each standard. While the
adoption of some of the amendments may result in changes in
accounting policies and additional disclosures, none of these
amendments are expected to have a significant financial
impact on the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Notes to Financial Statements
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2.4 TESTTBERBE

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company's investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract assets and financial assets),
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

MEAR

KB A RN R A BRI S &
EHRNERE  ABRCHRBHER -

HEBARMEESF AARRNKEKRD - WA
EWAE AU SRR - AR RRKTE AR
EVCE R AR AME R (L AR E RS 1851 BR o

FEMEENRE

HWHRBESRRAHEE (TREFE 2
RAREBEERSREE) ETFERRERH
AlgHAEENAREESHE - BEMNAKEE
BLEEIRGELEUERAEEREAAE
BEREERAMERNRSE X ARENE
EEE MREEIL TEL RIS BILNEA
BERBEMAGHNRERA - EZIBERT - 7
WESHAREEMBNRSELSUET -

REEENRESEBBE I E SR - R/
EEET THER - FHEEREER @ EFFARK
RenERARRENTSHEEKREERK
ZHEEMNFBRBRIOBATITR XMR AR
18 < BUEEE TN E S BRG ARE R ER
EEEMENERSEHR -

TEEEABERIERERAT « — 2244 71



[1

R DDA DA DI DA

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7 SR R BT &

31 December 2010
—E-THEF-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(c) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (b):

(d)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

(e) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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2.4 TESHHEBRE(E)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced as intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value (nil to 5% of cost) over its estimated useful life.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land and buildings 50 years
Machinery 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment and furniture 3-5 years

¥ BERRBRITE

BRIEETRRLASN - IR ~ BB R RABIRAANIRL
REHTE MEREERIIR - —EYE K
FERRERBENKARREBEBEEEE
EEERRRAE - AFRIEE REAE LR
ERTEREFAA -

Y% - BE RREER B FREFRAELNH
X MgERE - —RRELRRERERD
Nk - HimBHERARE - AERBRENHAXE
REERHETEMUERE SR - BATHE
BARBOWE - BEL&RE - AAREEREZ
EBNHERRBRE A ERFRRTENER
BE -

BEEME - BENRETEDABRRRER
FHAME R E M E AN EHRIREE - BT
E5% KA - EfhEAIERFHMT

Tt RiEF 504F
HEEE R 5-104F
Y 54
PWABERERE 3-54

HEEEABERIERERAR « — 224443 73



Notes to Financial Statements
B 7 SR R BT &

31 December 2010
—E-FFt-A=+-~

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2.4 TESHHRBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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2.4 TESHHEBRE(E)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised,
but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or
at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Software purchased is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of five years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five years, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as
a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 TESHHEBRE(E)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances,
trade and other receivables, quoted and unquoted financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in other income and
gains or finance costs in the statement of comprehensive
income. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets and management'’s intent to sell them in
the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets or held-to-maturity investments depends on
the nature of the assets. This evaluation does not affect any
financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
using the fair value option at designation.
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2.4 TESHHRUE(E)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair
value through praofit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value, with
unrealised gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale investment valuation
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and removed from the available-
for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and dividends
earned are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in
rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables
is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition
of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and
ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to
maturity. The reclassification to the held-to-maturity category
is permitted only when the entity has the ability and intent to
hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life
of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount
recorded in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.4 TESHHEBRE(E)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the assets in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 TESHHEBRE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. The determination of what is “significant” or "prolonged”
requires judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment losses on that
investment previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 TESHHRBE(E)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and
in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in
organised markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices at the close of business at the end of the
reporting period, without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm's
length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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2.4 TESHHRUE(E)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials and labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and
incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct
materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction
overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised
on the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the proportion of costs incurred to date to the
estimated total cost of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
treated as an amount due from contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
treated as an amount due to contract customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 TESHHEBE(E)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 TESHHEBRE(E)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
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in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can

be utilised.
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extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

90 china Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2010



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

BT A5 SRR M e

31 December 2010
—2-24+-A=+-A8

2.4 TESHHEBRE(E)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 TESHHEHE(E)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b)  from construction contracts, on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

(c) from the rendering of services, the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy of “contract for services” below.

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established.

92 Cchina Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2010

LON:

WA AR B 5 AT JE (S A T M 2 3 BE S AT S 3t
FHEBFRIA T R -

() HEFMREGREEENEARBRND
BEWBETESRERIAR  EAKE
ATB2EARAMELEREEENX
ERERIEARNEE

(b) BEARBARERE SEKED KL FIFE
BN - E—FHBHN AR [
BRI MEFBEA

(€ REBBHREHBRANTIE kAR
B RTX[SHAR] 0eHREEe
— S

d FEBAZEFEE RAKSRTA
BEF FHAMGHARRERNASHTRE
CREERMFENRRRUEERN S
ERER K

()  BURMSEUSSRAVEERFE B OB U e



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

BT A5 SRR M e

31 December 2010
—2-24+-A=+-A8

2.4 TESHHEBRE(E)

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the
agreed contract amount. Costs of rendering services comprise
labour and other costs of personnel directly engaged in
providing the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised based
on the percentage of completion of the transaction, provided
that the revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs
to completion can be measured reliably. The percentage of
completion is established by reference to the costs incurred
to date as compared to the total costs to be incurred under
the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract cannot be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as an amount due from contract customers. Where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
treated as an amount due to contract customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2.4 TESHHRBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other employees benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local government. These subsidiaries and
their employees are required to make monthly contributions
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ wages and
salaries, subject to certain ceilings and local practices set
by the relevant local governments, to the central pension
scheme. Other than the central pension scheme, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China have no legal obligation
for retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a
defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independent administered
fund.

Contributions to an accommodation fund administered by
the Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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2.4 TESHHEBRE(E)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHBEBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share, when appropriate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 TESHHEBRE(E)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately
as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, as this is
the principal currency of the economic environment in which
the Group operates. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2.4 TESHHEHE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain companies within the
Group are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

S (8)
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The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make significant estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these significant assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.
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3. FESTHHEMME (E)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Percentage of completion of construction contract works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of individual contract of construction work, which
requires estimation to be made by management. The stage
of completion is estimated by reference to the actual costs
incurred over the total budgeted costs, and the corresponding
contract revenue is also estimated by management. Due to
the nature of the activity undertaken in construction contracts,
the date at which the activity is entered into and the date
at which the activity is completed usually fall into different
accounting periods. Hence, the Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the
budget prepared for each contract as the contract progresses.
Where the actual contract revenue is less than expected or
actual contract costs are more than expected, an impairment
loss may arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)
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Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”)

The Group’s operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to PRC CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to PRC CIT have not been confirmed by the relevant
local tax authorities, objective estimates based on currently
enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies are
required in determining the provision of PRC CIT to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact
the income tax and tax provision in the period in which
the differences realise. The carrying amount of PRC CIT
payable at 31 December 2010 was RMB21,018,000 (2009:
RMB13,632,000).

Impairment of receivables

The provision policy for impairment of receivables of the
Group is based on ongoing assessment of the recoverability
and the aged analysis of the outstanding receivables and
on management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of those receivables, including the creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of the customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances might be required. At 31 December
2010, impairment provision for receivables amounted to
approximately RMB3,210,000 (2009: RMB3,210,000).
Further details are given in notes 23 and 24 to the financial
statements.
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Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for the
product or service output of the asset, expected usage of
the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset
is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Depreciation amount will be
adjusted if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual
values of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from the previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each financial year end date taking into
account changes in circumstances.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses each cash-generating unit annually to
determine whether any indication of impairment exists. Where
an indicator of impairment exists, a formal estimate of the
recoverable amount is made, which is considered to be the
higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
The carrying value of the non-financial assets is reviewed
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable in
accordance with the accounting policy as disclosed in the
relevant part of this section. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to estimate future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

fhst (TRERE) (&)

YFE BB RZEEEHF R EE

REEYE - BEK&RER B H A FHME
HEER  AREAEZEZHEAE - M
WRAER R EmEEMELER IR
MinHR - BENTAERE  AHRERIER
BEHGENRE  UREERBNEEIEU
REIAE K EHHRMAAEMERE - BEA
ERFHRNREASEHAEALUNELUEE
EAEERfAET o W3 - BE KRR B HfhET
AERFSKSRBREERBE TR -
A ESBE TARE - AERFHRFIRE
BTN EMBEFELS B RRBERB(CIELFE -

e A EZBIE
AEBESFHEEREELEN - UEERE
BEMBETFREFE - LFERETR - Al
BT e e EHEXEE - AR BEREE
RAEEREBEENRSE - BAHA BB B
BZe R FHRENBREREER LR
FWEE - Fe@MEEZREAEETRER
& o AEFHEREER - ARBAGFRESES
BUMNARKRRERE  WRESENITRE
Mt B %SRS RENRE -
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BRI DT DI DI DI DT

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 3. FE=:¥HENM&GET(E)
(Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued) st (FRERE) (B8)
Net realisable value of inventories FEZ A #5FEE
Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling FEZAEEREDERNE BEEBRRR G
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs TEE - HIRHERS - ZE Mt VER B Al
to be incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates o &8s R AHE AR M2 BT L - 2]
are based on the current market condition and the historical el ATERNE LA HBETAMBEE
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could j(E = Hiﬁlﬁ\%iﬁiﬁﬁﬂii%ﬁuﬂﬁm—rﬁ
change significantly as a result of changes in customer ik —ZEFTA=+—H  WEFEER
taste or competitor actions. Management reassesses these ﬁ%ﬁ ®
estimates at the end of each reporting period. There was no
impairment provision for inventories as at 31 December 2010.

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4. DEHER KU A

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents an
appropriate proportion of contract revenue of construction
contracts; the value of services rendered, net of business tax
and government surcharges; and invoiced value of goods
sold, net of value-added tax and government surcharges, and
after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

The Group’s revenue and contribution to profit for the year
were mainly derived from curtain wall supply and installation
service, which is regarded as a single reportable segment
in @ manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s senior management
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment. In addition, the principal assets employed
by the Group are located in Mainland China. Accordingly,
no segment analysis is presented other than entity-wide
disclosures.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4. FEERRBA (&)
REVENUE (Continued)
Entity-wide disclosures DEEATNENEE
Information about products and services B R IR B &Y
The following table sets forth the total revenue from external TERHBIVIZERRREEIDHRE NI H
customers by product and service and the percentage of total 4B U A LA K AN SR AR EE fn R RS 2 o my 42U A
revenue by product and service during the year: B :
2010 2009
—E-—EF —TTNEF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARET T AREETIT
Construction contracts EEAR 1,324,734 74.3 1,076,409 86.3
Sale of goods EmiHE 455,641 25.6 170,453 13.7
Rendering of design services RUEERET RS 2,072 0.1 493 =
1,782,447 100.0 1,247,355 100.0
Geographical information Hh B B
(@) Revenue from external customers (@) REIIIEEHUA
2010 2009
—E-=F —ZETNF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥TR AREFTT
Mainland China A B R RE 1,741,430 97.7 1,134,537 91.0
Outside Mainland China R B KB LA S [ 41,017 2.3 112,818 9.0
1,782,447 100.0 1,247,355 100.0
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND 4. DHERRWA (FB)

REVENUE (Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

LR ARMNEIRE (&)

Geographical information (Continued) HhfE B (4E)

(b)  Non-current assets

Mainland China
Hong Kong

Information about major customers

No revenue from a single external customer accounted for

(b) FERBEE

2010 2009
—2-%% —TThE
RMB’000 % RMB’'000 %
ARETF AREF 7
LRIEIpN 2 341,418 95.0 117,242 86.2
B 18,014 5.0 18,717 13.8
359,432 100.0 135,959 100.0
BEBEEEFHEN

BEXEESINBEFHBRAGAREAFE

10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the year. AR 10% 8A | o
5. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. HWAR WKz
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: Efassk A ST ¢
2010 2009
—E-2F ZZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREBTT
Interest income K B A 1,162 517
Government grants* BT HE SR 5,023 2,190
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE&
plant and equipment RABIE B 2 s 26 7
One-off processing income —RE T A - 2,443
Others Hitb 1,505 1,005
7,716 6,162
* There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to * A R B R R ER e FETEEA S IE -

these grants.
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIADZER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBBRB AT MR (GEA) AT E
(crediting): 17 :
2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat AR¥ETR ARETIT
Cost of construction contracts BEE R RFFRBEAA
and design services 1,003,797 830,701
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 341,068 123,219
Depreciation e 14 10,435 6,555
Amortisation of prepaid land TE 40 70 & FRIE 5
lease payments 5 245 66
Amortisation of intangible assets EEERE 16 111 35
Minimum lease payments under KEHETHRERE
operating leases 3% 3,678 2,080
Research costs FFTA A 9,899 10,054
Auditors’ remuneration 2% EREM BN & 2,980 2,552
Staff costs (including directors’ ETRA(BIEEEME
remuneration (note 8)): (MI7E8)) -
Wages and salaries and TE& - e kiErEEs
relevant benefits 53,601 27,683
Pension scheme contributions RIREETE 1,404 646
Equity-settled share option expense [RA4EH 2 AR MR 2 31 19,323 20,306
74,328 48,635
Reversal of provision for REEI'E 5 & Hh e GRIR
impairment of trade and other B
receivables - (407)
Transaction costs related to the listing IR ARD T EREAY
of then existing shares RPEH - 570
Exchange losses, net PE W E18 - FRE 3,276 81
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERA
2010 2009
—E-TF —ETHhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T
Interest on bank loans ARAFREEEEDN
wholly repayable within five years IRITEFRAF B 11,306 3,285
Other finance costs H AR & RN 2,815 4,917
14,121 8,202
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to REEBMARZAERAR ([BRA]) &3
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock EARANRERABEDIF 161 FEBENFR
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”) and Section MO
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTTHhF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREETIT

Fees we 2,914 3,063
Other emoluments: Hp<
Salaries, allowances e EAR
and benefits in kind BEYIF = 654 617
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET B 12 6
Equity-settled share option expense [RA4EH 2 BB AR iR =2 3,551 4,606
7,131 8,292
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(Continued)

BT A5 SRR M e

31 December 2010
—2-24+-A=+-A8

8. EEME (%)

In the prior year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options which are being recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration

REFE - BREAATNBRESS  5T8
ERYAEE Y REERBRIE - & — S
WS EEN 3] - BB IR ESER
WRRREY A EE  ARTAMRE - A
BEEAFENPERAREE LI ESH
R -

disclosures.
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme  share option
inkind  contributions benefits Total
Fees  He 2l  BASHE  RAZEZ  remuneration
Be  REWRE Y BREEX B0 P
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%Trn AR¥Tx AR®Tr AR%Tx
2010 —Z-TF
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Liu Hongwei BTk 913 234 4 961 2,112
Mr. Sun Jinli Berrst 577 210 4 961 1,752
Mr. Xie Wen R AE 577 210 4 961 1,752
2,067 654 12 2,883 5,616
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Mr. Lin Xiaofeng MRS A 115 - - 167 282
Mr. Cao Zhirong gt Pt 115 - - - 115
230 - - 167 397
Independent BAERITES :
non- executive directors:
Mr. Wang Ching IREE 170 - - 167 337
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SKELE 255 - - 167 422
Mr. Cheng Jinshu BeBikE 192 - - 167 359
617 - - 501 1,118
2914 654 12 3,551 7,131
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEMe (&)
(Continued)
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Pension settled
and benefits scheme  share option
inkind  contributions benefits Total
Fees & 28 Rike  BRAKEEZ  remuneration

e REWME sPEIfE  RRRERIX Hast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETE

2009 “ETNEF
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Liu Hongwei BT 963 221 2 1,246 2,432
Mr. Sun Jinli FeBrtE 611 198 2 1,246 2,057
Mr. Xie Wen FIEE 611 198 2 1,246 2,057
2,185 617 6 3,738 6,546
Non-executive directors: FRTES
Mr. Lin Xiaofeng MBS 119 = = 217 336
Mr. Cao Zhirong EEREE 40 - - - 40
Mr. Shi Yu PREE 79 = = = 79
238 - - 217 455
Independent non- BIUFRTES :
executive directors:
Mr. Wang Ching FREE 176 = = 217 393
Mr. Yick Wing Fat, Simon SKEFE 264 - - 217 481
Mr. Cheng Jinshu BesitE 200 - - 217 417
640 - - 651 1,291
3,063 617 6 4,606 8,292
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FRATETMNESHEIREREFHH 2
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2009: Nil). TH(ZETNF : &) o
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FfuBSHES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2009: three) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining two (2009: two) non-directors, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & - 3285 M EYIFIZ

Pension scheme contributions RINEFT B

Equity-settled share option expense

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

IRAEE 2 BB AR RER X

FA ANRSFMEEFEE=(L (=TT
NE: =MD EF RENFMER LXPE
8 HTM(ZZTTNF : W) FEERS
HEEFANHMFEBLT

2010 2009
—e-®5 -TTNG
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBFRT  ARETL
1,276 1,455

25 23

1,231 1,480
2,532 2,958

THFHEE AN EEE S HE S A
™

Number of employees

REAH
2010 2009
—g-2F  —TINF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 77 % 2,000,000 7T 2 2

In the prior year, share options were granted to certain non-
director, highest paid employees in respect of their services
to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which has been recognised to profit or
loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above non-director, highest
paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

REFE  ETHEEESHREEAHAKE
ZRIGERBIE - — T ER T RARM
31 E - BEBRNESER 2 IR E
ZAREE ERTEHREE  BEBEELF
EMBHRRCBRELRFEEESHEE M
BRHEE -
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FrfEHiRA <

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the respective jurisdictions in
which members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in Bermuda and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits derived from or earned in
Hong Kong during the year.

The provision for PRC CIT is based on the respective CIT rates
applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules
and regulations of the PRC for the year.

The major components of income tax expense for the year are
as follows:

Current — Mainland China

— Charge for the year —FARRAXZ
Current — Hong Kong & HFTSI — &5

— Charge for the year —FRRZ
Deferred IRIE
Total tax charge for the year FRFSHE Y A58
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AEBAREKB RRIfRMELHNRDEER
PRELRMEAERN - REBEEIRHMG
i o

REABRERABRLEEEARER  ~A5KH
BRAGMBRENRBRIEE ZEMME
i o

BN 7 R (B 37 R 0 B 7 A SRR (L] B
aRpLE A - BRI R BB TS B TR

REIBEMAEHR ([REREHR]) BELERS
BAREHBARERNBREEEMSEHE &
MR THEARNEE T B2 BRI SHAR KRG

BEE °

AEEMBHASXERFIIT

2010 2009
—E-2F ZZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREBTT
52,582 22,681

- 158

12,394 7,505
64,976 30,344




10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

10.
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31 December 2010
—E-THEF+-A=+—H

FrigH ()

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the applicable tax rates for the jurisdictions in which
companies within the Group to the tax expense at the effective
tax rates is as follows:

Profit before tax R A1 g A

At the applicable tax rates BEAMGSHETE
Effect of tax holiday HRisEEHNTE
Expenses not deductible for tax AN H

Effect of withholding tax at 5% on
the distributable profits of
the Group’s
Mainland China subsidiaries

GG Z

REE BT R
BIAR

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective tax rate

In accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the
“New CIT Law”) approved by the National People’s Congress
on 16 March 2007, except for Zhuhai Singyes Green Building
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai Singyes”), which is further
explained below, the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are subject to CIT at a rate of 25%.

Zhuhai Singyes

On 16 December 2008, Zhuhai Singyes was awarded the
certificate of High Technologies Enterprise (the “Certificate”)
by the Guangdong Science and Technology Department,
Guangdong Provincial Finance Bureau, Guangdong
Provincial Office of the State Administration of Taxation and
the Guangdong Provincial Local Taxation Bureau, effective for
three years from the date of issuance of the Certificate. In this
connection, the CIT rate for Zhuhai Singyes was 15% in 2010.

HAE B EARHBAR
BORT IR 5% Bisk

ERAEBARATMEREERNERHE
FHEMBRRATEMABIES H - EABRRE
AENTIES HMREOERAT

2010 2009
—g-8F —TINE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTE  ARMTE
281,474 181,511
49,405 40,643

- (20,927)

3,177 3,123
12,394 7,505
64,976 30,344

BEREEARRKRAGR_ZTLE=A+TX
Rt EPBECEAEIATHEEMSER
A BIWBEESRERERBZERAR (13K
AR |) IASMNR B R B KR 2 HERHT A7)
M 25% 2 RFRFTEH o INBELE 2 ERAMRE
PriSTiat AR T

BRigELE

REZZENF+-A+RE  HRBEERER
EHBRME BEREMBR BEREBERK
BRERERE MR RBEE S RMEES
E(RBE] BZEERBRZAE=FRNE
e Bt - IWEEEN - -ZFHNEEME
MEER15% e
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FR8% (48)
Zhuhai Singyes (Continued) HgEE (&)
As at 31 December 2010, deferred tax liabilities of RZE—ZTF+ZHA=1T—8H ' B@HKEHEE
RMB12,394,000 (2009: RMB7,505,000) regarding N IR g B ee R B A R A A) ([ B2 3 ae
withholding income tax on the undistributed earnings (future TR RO BT CRARARE) BTEIRTE A FRE
dividend) of Zhuhai Singyes and Zhuhai Singyes Renewable HRIEAEARK12,394,000T (=TT A F :
Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Singyes Renewable Energy”) AR 7,505,000 7T) B # 45 (KizE29) °

have been provided for (note 29).

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 11. AQB#EH AE(LRF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company BE_Z—ZF+_A=+—HILEFE"
for the year ended 31 December 2010 includes a loss of ARAREBEABRGEHGHNEREEBEEAR
RMB18,027,000 (2009: loss of RMB19,688,000), which has # 18,027,000 c(—EZE N F : FHEARK
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company 19,688,0007T) * E&HRAA RIF B HRE (&

(note 32). 32) e
12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2

2010 2009
—E-TF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARMETIT

Interim — Nil (2009: RMB2 cents) FEIIR B — B EERE

per ordinary share (ZZTNEF : ARK0.027T) - 9,820
Proposed final — RMB3 cents ERAHRE —GFERRK

(2009: RMB3 cents) AR¥0.037T

per ordinary share (ZZEZNF : AR¥0.037T) 14,727 14,730

14,727 24,550

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the REEHIR 2 AR S EBEA R RIRER R EE
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming fRERBERE LB o

annual general meeting.
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements
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13. AR A EERERFEARGS

BRI

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 490,940,000 (2009: 453,126,027) in issue
during the year.

Profit attributable to ordinary VNSRS g e

equity holders of the Company B ARG A

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FRE 217 EBARR
shares in issue during the year InHET5 8

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2010 and 2009 in respect of a dilution as the exercise price
of the Company’s outstanding share options was higher than
the average market price for the Company’s share during
the period from the grant date of the share options to 31
December 2010.

BRERNRTDIREARQTEZRSEE AEN
F s A R F AR T E BRI E
490,940,000 & (=TT N4F : 453,126,027 i%)
B

2010 2009
—E-2F ZZETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETIT
216,419 151,067

Number of shares

ROBE
2010 2009
-85 —TThF
490,940,000 453,126,027

BHRARRHARITENERENTEESNA
REBRERI —E—ZF+-A=+—HXK
RERMDOTFIOTE  BERBE—_T—TFR
“EEAFT A=+ RIEE  WEE
SBYEHEREANBNERE -

PEEEKGERMIZRERAF « — T TFFHR

113



Notes to Financial Statements
B 7 SR R BT &

31 December 2010
—E-FFt-A=+-~

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9% - BERRE

Group

31 December 2010

Cost:

At 1 January 2010
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2010

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2010
Charged for

the year (note 6)
Disposals
Exchange realignment
At 31 December 2010
Net carrying value:

At 1 January 2010

At 31 December 2010

—2-2FT=A=t-H

BA
R=Z—FF—HF—H
NE

e

HE

IE i %

—T-TE+-A=1+-H

RiHE:
RZZE-F4F—A—H
AEEME

(HizE6)
HE
B3 9%

RoF-3E+-A=t-E

BREFE

RoF-3E+-A=t-E

REE
Office
equipment

Land and Motor and furniture Construction
Buildings ~ Machinery vehicles BWAZE  in progress Total
THREF  BERE RE RERFAE ERIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000  RMB’000
ARETR ARTn ARETR AR®TR AR%TR AR¥Tx
60,726 46,426 5,652 5,264 10,995 129,063
5,267 10,347 4,251 2,377 145,307 167,549
12,405 - - - (12,405) -
- - (148) - - (148)
(626) - - (4) - (630)
71,772 56,773 9,755 7,637 143,897 295,834
1,886 11,930 1,492 2,947 - 18,255
1,374 6,989 1,342 730 - 10,435
- - (113) - - (113)
(12) - - (1) - (13)
3,248 18,919 2,721 3,676 - 28,564
58,840 34,496 4,160 2,317 10,995 110,808
74,524 37,854 7,034 3,961 143,897 267,270
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14. Y% - BERZRE (E)

(Continued)
Group REE
Office
equipment
Land and Motor and furniture - Construction
Buildings  Machinery vehicles HAZE  in progress Total
TiREFT  BERE AE REREE HEIR Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETL ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETT AR®ETT
31 December 2009 “EENE+-A=+—H
Cost: PR :
At 1 January 2009 RZZZNF—F—H 23,965 27,108 1,535 3,689 12,000 68,297
Additions NE 18,655 2,890 4,183 1,575 33,529 60,832
Transfers EBLES 18,106 16,428 - = (34,534) -
Disposals HE - - (66) - - (66)
At 31 December 2009 R-BZNFE+-A=1+—H 60,726 46,426 5,652 5,264 10,995 129,063
Accumulated depreciation: ~ Z5THE :
At 1 January 2009 R-ZEZNFE—F—H 1,289 7,033 974 2452 - 11,748
Charged for AEEHE
the year (note 6) (Hi=E6) 597 4,897 566 495 - 6,555
Disposals HE - - (48) - - (48)
At 31 December 2009 R-ZFNF+-A=+—H 1,886 11,930 1,492 2,947 - 18,255
Net carrying value: BREFME
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNF—F—H 22,676 20,075 561 1,237 12,000 56,549
At 31 December 2009 RZZTNF+=A=+—H 58,840 34,496 4,160 2,317 10,995 110,808

At 31 December 2010, certain of the Group’s land and
buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB21,167,000 (2009: Nil) were pledged to secure bank
loans granted to the Group (note 28).

RZBE-—ZF+ZA=+—0H AEEKREF
BHOARE21,167,000 T(ZEZNF: #)H
ET 1 REFRERERR TAKEIRT
B2 HER (FIRE28) -

PEEEKGERMIZRERAF « — T TFFHR
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BERZRE (B)

(Continued)
Company Vi N/NET|
Office
equipment
Land and and furniture
Buildings BAERE Total
TRET RRE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®T T
31 December 2010 “E-TE+-A=1+—H
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2010 RZE-ZTF—-F—H 18,655 111 18,766
Additions R 361 23 384
Exchange realignment BE i % (626) 4 (630)
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZF+-A=+—H 18,390 130 18,520
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE :
At1 January 2010 R=Z—FF—F—H 35 14 49
Charged for the year AEEHE 447 23 470
Exchange realignment IE i % (12) 1) (13)
At 31 December 2010 R-Z—ZF+-A=1+—H 470 36 506
Net carrying value: FEFE:
At 1 January 2010 R-ZT-ZF—-f—H 18,620 97 18,717
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZF+-F=1+—H 17,920 94 18,014
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BERZRE (E)

Notes to Financial Statements

BT A5 SRR M e

31 December 2010

—E-FF+=A=1-A

(Continued)
Company Vi N/NET|
Office
equipment
Land and and furniture
buildings WAERBE Total
T RIET pEL! 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT AREFTL
31 December 2009 —ZENF+=A=1+-H
Cost: R
At 1 January 2009 RZZENF—A—H - - -
Additions NE 18,655 111 18,766
At 31 December 2009 iy e e = 18,655 111 18,766
Accumulated depreciation: REHE
At 1 January 2009 RZZZNF—A—H - - -
Charged for the year AEEHE 35 14 49
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENFT-_A=T—H 35 14 49
Net carrying value: BREHE
At 1 January 2009 R=ZZTNF—F—H - = =
At 31 December 2009 RZZEENFT-_A=T—H 18,620 97 18,717

At 31 December 2010, the Company’s land and buildings
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB17,920,000
(2009: Nil) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the

Group.

R-BE—FE+-A=+—H  AAFEET
EH AR 17,920,000 T(—ZEZHE: &)W
T RIEFERAEAE T ASENRITER

ZHER -

PEEEKGERMIZRERAF « — T TFFHR
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2010
—F-TF+-A=t+-8

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. A Lt HERIE

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—g-%F —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZERHE 1,175 834
Additions NE 33,097 407
Amortisation charged IS

for the year (note 6) (M¥zE6) (245) (66)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—RHZEHEE 34,027 1,175
At 31 December 2010, certain of the Group’s prepaid land RZB—ZF+-A=+—0 AEEKREF
lease payments with a net carrying amount of approximately EHAREE32,879,000 T(ZFTTNF: 8B
RMB32,879,000 (2009: Nil) were pledged to secure bank ETEMN L EEREEERESR TAEE
loans granted to the Group (note 28). HERITEF 2 &R (MI5E28) o
The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is HELHWIREPBHAERSE  LWRPFBE KX
situated in Mainland China. B o
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Group
REE
2010 2009
—ET-FF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Software B
Cost: AN :
At 1 January 2010 RnZZET—ZTF—H—H 257 -
Additions NE 439 257
At 31 December 2010 RZEZ—ZFF+-A=1+—H 696 257
Accumulated amortisation: g ol
At 1 January 2010 W_ZE—ZTF—F—H (35) -
Provided during the year (note 6) FABAE (H5E6) (111) (35)
At 31 December 2010 RZE—TF+_A=+—H (146) (35)
Net carrying amount: BRENFHE !
At 1 January 2010 N—_ZE—TF—H—H 222 =
At 31 December 2010 RZEBE—ZF+_-_A=+—H 550 222
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31 December 2010
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RB A RINRE

Company
PN
2010 2009
—g-%F —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT

Unlisted equity investments, at cost IEEMRAIRE + AR

— Innofast Investments Limited —EIRERRAA
(“Innofast”) (M8m0) 2 2
— Singyes Solar Technologies —BE RGN K TIEERAF
Engineering Co., Ltd. ([EZKFEE D)
(“Singyes Solar”) 1 1
— Basic Force Group Limited — Basic Force Group Limited
(“Basic Force”) ([Basic Forcel) 1 1
— Top Access Management — Top Access Management Limited
Limited (“Top Access”) ([Top Access ) 1 1
— Singyes Engineering — WETRE(FH)BRAF]
(H.K.) Co., Ltd. ([HZETRE])
(“Singyes Engineering”) 1 1
6 6
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries included in the RZE—TFER_TTNF+=_A=+—8"
Company’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 BRERARAIRBDEERGDEBEANNE
December 2010 and 2009 were unsecured, interest-free and U/ N E AR REAERR 28 RAR
were repayable on demand or within one year. The carrying TREF S —FNEE - U TENHB AR
amounts of the amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate THRERAEEENABERES -

to their fair values.
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

BT A5 SRR M e

31 December 2010
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17. RIB R BRNRE (8)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below:

Company name

AT EE

Innofast

(2

Singyes Solar

EEYNVE S

Basic Force

Top Access

Singyes Engineering

HXTiE

Place and date

of incorporation/
registration

and operations
MR FE
B2 KA

Hong Kong/Hong Kong
8 August 2001

BB/ BE
T
JAVVAN=!

Hong Kong/Hong Kong
7 April 2009

Bt/ BB
—ETNE
MA+H

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
1 July 2009
EBRUES/EF
—ZTNF
+HA—H

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
6 July 2009
REELHE,/ BS
—TThEF
+ARA

Hong Kong/Hong Kong
3 August 2009

Bt/ BB
—EThEF
NAZ=H

Nominal value
of registered/
paid-up capital
=B
RAEE

HK$2

28T

HK$1

1T

HK$1

BT

HK$1

1T

HK$1

1T

ARBHBRR ZFHBEHIIAT

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
RATREN
ERAAL
Direct Indirect

HE &

100% -

100% =

100% -

100% =

100% =

Principal
activities

FEER

Investment holding

REER

Design, manufacture,
supply and
installation
of curtain walls

EOREC R
R REER

Investment holding

REEKR

Investment holding

REER

Design, manufacture,
supply and
installation
of curtain walls

et BE
HERZRERE

PEEEKGERMIZRERAF « — T TFFHR
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

17. RIB R BRNRE (8)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (continued)

Company name

AEERE

Zhuhai Singyes !

BigHE!

Singyes Renewable
Energy ?

BEHRER

Zhuhai Singyes
Marine Biology

Technology Co., Ltd. 4

(“Singyes Marine”)
R EEE T

EYRH A R

nE([REFE])

Zhuhai Singyes
Photovoltaic
Technologies
Co., Ltd. 3

(“Singyes Photovoltaic”)

EBERLE
RRBERAR?
(TERER))

Place and date

of incorporation/
registration

and operations
ML MR
BEWURAY

PRC/Mainland China
21 August 1995

B A RE
—NNEF
NE=1+—H

PRC/Mainland China
11 October 2007

B R EARE
—ZTTtHF
+A+—H

PRC/Mainland China
30 November 2009

hE/hEAR
—ZTNEF
T-A=*H

PRC/Mainland China
31 March 2010

hEREAR

—Z-TF

=A=t+-1

Nominal value Percentage of

of registered/ equity attributable

paid-up capital to the Company

Rl RARES

RAEE BERZADL
Direct Indirect

HiE R

US$8,000,000 - 75%

8,000,000% T

US$13,125,000 - 100%

13,125,000% ¢

RMB20,000,000 - 100%

AR 20,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000 - 60%

AR 10,000,0007T
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Principal
activities

FEER

Design, manufacture,
supply and
installation
of curtain walls

it s
HERZEERE

Research,
development,
manufacture
and sale of
photovoltaic
solar products

BE - BUERIHE
KRRGHEER

Research and
development of
marine biology
technology

YRR RR B

Research of photovoltaic
film

FIRERIT
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
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31 December 2010
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17. RIB R BRNRE (8)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (continued)

Company name

AEEE

Hunan Singyes Solar

Technology Co., Ltd. ®

(“Hunan Singyes”)

HPRE AR
BRARS
(e mE )

Singyes Energy-saving

Technology Co., Ltd.*

(“Singyes Energy-
saving”)

BB BRI
AR
([EZEHEE )

Place and date

of incorporation/
registration

and operations
AL R
BEHURAN

PRC/Mainland China
18 August 2010

P EAR

—E-TF
AV AN

PRC/Mainland China
7 December 2010

P RE AR

e

+=-A+tH

Nominal value
of registered/
paid-up capital
=z
RAEE

HK$75,000,000

75,000,000/ 7T

1 Zhuhai Singyes is registered as a co-operative joint venture

enterprise under the PRC law. During the year, the company

AAFMBARZFHERFINT  (4)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AREELN
EEBEOH
Direct Indirect

k3 CEE

= 100%

= 100%

Principal
activities

FEER

Research,
development,
manufacture and sale

of photovoltaic products

iz HE
BEERHE N IREm

Research and
development of
energy-saving
products

7 RS ER

1 WERETREFEEZZMAGERLERE -
FRN - ZARERRREGEEZERENKREAR
RF] - BETHENER  ARRRESBRE

changed its name to Zhuhai Singyes Green Building Technology
Co., Ltd. The Company indirectly held a 75% equity interest in
Zhuhai Singyes and the remaining 25% equity interests were
held by Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr. Sun Jinli, two directors of the
Company, for the purpose of complying with the PRC regulations.
According to letters of undertaking and Zhuhai Singyes'’s articles
of association, Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr. Sun Jinli are only
entitled to a fixed annual return of RMB100,000, the Company
has consolidated the income statement of Zhuhai Singyes in full
during 2009 and 2010, and account for the fixed annual return
of RMB100,000 entitled by Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr. Sun Jinli as
profit attributable to non-controlling interests (note 33).

5 75% Ak - HER25% BRERANRIMEES
2T H R E RFABIE R ERA o IRIRAGE R Ik
BEENNRIER A TEREKESEEEE
B ZASFEERRARE100,0007T * XA
ARZEENFR T TEECHREAREHEE
R - WA ERREREEEZE
K4 &5 B 5] A R % 100,000 7T 1E A FE 12 AR 4
EEERE AR (FIFE33) o

B R KSR MIZRERAF o

—-rER
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

T

17. AfIBARMIRE (E)

AATMBARZFERIIWT - ()

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: (continued)

Singyes Renewable Energy was formerly registered as a co-
operative joint-venture enterprise under the PRC law, and
changed to a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise after Zhuhai
Singyes transferred a 25% equity interest of Singyes Renewable
Energy to Innofast in the current year. On 1 April 2010, the Group
increased its capital injection in Singyes Renewable Energy totalling
US$8,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB54,608,800).
The additional capital injection was satisfied by cash. Upon
the completion of additional capital injection, the registered
paid-up capital of Singyes Renewable Energy increased from
US$5,125,000 to US$13,125,000.

Singyes Photovoltaic and Hunan Singyes are registered as foreign
investment enterprises under the PRC law.

The equity interest of Hunan Singyes has been pledged to secure
the Group’s bank loans amounting to HK$100,000,000 (note 28).

Singyes Marine and Singyes Energy-saving are registered as wholly-
foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law.

18. PAYMENTS IN ADVANCE

N}

FEIMERDZAIRBETBAEEM A ERLE
R - WRAFEIREEE RGNS RN
IR 25% B ERRRINEBELE - R_F—
TEMA—H  AREENT HEEXHERD
EE £ 558,000,000 T(HERHAR
#54,608,8007T) ° FINEARUREHAIEA °
BINEE TR - BEFEROEMSRRAR
5,125,000 F T4 10 % 13,125,000 7T °

3 FLEE SR SO R R IE T B EM RN AE R
e

HERENRECEKAFEAAEBE S
100,000,000 & L EERT TEFRAIPE(R (MiFE28) °

¢ BLSE5 BT AL ToARIB o BDR R R M RSN S
BERE -

18. FAIFKIA

Group

TEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Advance payments in respect of: LATRIE B B TE S 5R0E:

Prepaid land lease payment TEf LA EFR0E 2,486 =
Purchase of machinery fEE R 23,925 2,600
26,411 2,600
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19. AN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY
INVESTMENT

Notes to Financial Statements
R S e

31 December 2010
—2-24+-A=+-A8

19. AIRHEREKRE

As at 31 December 2010, the available-for-sale equity
investment is an equity investment in Weihai China
Glass Solar Co., Ltd. (“Weihai China”). Pursuant to an
equity injection agreement dated 12 July 2010, the
existing shareholders of Weihai China agreed to increase
the registered capital in proportion to their respective
shareholdings. On 30 December 2010, the Group made
its additional capital injection in Weihai China totalling
US$1,620,000 by cash. The aggregate investment of
US$4,720,000 was stated at cost as the Group has no
influence and control over Weihai China. Meanwhile, since
there is no quoted market price for such equity investment,
and the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that its fair
value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not
intend to dispose of it in the near future.

20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

R-Z—FFE+—A=+—08  AEHERK
BERBBBTENXERRAA(EFHE])
- RERSA—T—ZEE LA+ _HH
BASEE R - BUSPERERREREREH
REAELL B AN EAR - R=ZT—ZTF+— A
=+H AEBENAIRE A H1,620,000% A
BB R IEEBINEE o IR & 4,720,000 0%
BRASIE « IR ANEES ISP B
B REHIE - FF - BRZRERE T ED
BHE BHRABEARBEGH ZHEE
RN BEZRE HARBEEZAIZGEE - K
ERESNTHBEHE -

Listed equity investments,
at market value

— Mainland China 1N

The above equity investments at 31 December 2010
were classified as held for trading and were, upon initial
recognition, designated by the Group as financial assets as at
fair value through profit or loss.

ETEAKE - RWE

20. EBIBHE R A A METIRNRS
RE&E

Group
AEE

2010 2009

—E-EF —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBFT ARETT

3,044 =

3,044 =

RZE—ZFF+_A=+H " FlRAKRES
BRRZFEE  URARBVRRERRIEER
FERBERARBEIIRNESRBEE -

PEEEKGERMIZRERAF « — T TFFHR
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21. INVENTORIES 21. &
Group
KEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETHhF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T
Raw materials, at cost AR 3R 18,761 8,674
22. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 22. BEAH
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARET T
Gross amount due from JEWE RE PR RIBAERE
contract customers 72,234 52,719
72,234 52,719
Contract costs incurred plus recognised  FTEA RIRK AN IN_E B #ERE
profits less recognised losses to date  FllEiZ=i2 45 B HEREIE 386,629 345911
Less: Progress billings B RS A E RIE (314,395) (293,192)
72,234 52,719
The carrying amounts of construction contracts approximate BESRFENRABEMEEA R EBEMES -

to their fair values.
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements
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23. BB ZFE

Trade receivables

FEWE 5 5IH
Less: Impairment )

B ORE

As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables contained
retention money receivables of RMB97,695,000 (2009:
RMB70,137,000).

The majority of the Group’s revenues are generated
through construction contracts and settlement is made
in accordance with the terms specified in the contracts
governing the relevant transactions. The Group does not
have a standardised and universal credit period granted
to its construction service customers. The credit period of
individual construction service customers is considered on a
case-by-case basis and set out in the construction contracts,
as appropriate. In the event that a project contract does not
specify the credit period, the usual practice of the Group
is to allow a credit period of 30 to 150 days. For the sale of
materials, a credit period ranging from three to six months
may be granted to large customers. Revenues from small and
new customers are normally expected to be settled shortly
after the provision of services or delivery of goods. No credit
period is set by the Group for small and new customers.
For retention money receivables in respect of construction
works carried out by the Group, the due dates usually range
from one to three years after the completion of the relevant
construction works. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

Group

TEH
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT
798,297 563,229
(3,060) (3,060)
795,237 560,169

RZZE—ZFFE+A=+—H  BREFHKA
BREEKERE AR 97,695,000 (ZEE
NE + AR¥70,137,0007T) °

REENASDRABBEREEREL Wi
RETHBARXIMAERTIEENGEREE - &
SEEAR THESRBEPEERGF—KE
B o ERERRBEENEE GBI
E o WHBARELEERFT (EE) o fH—I18
HEAHARTAEER - AIASEMEG AR
HFNTIEZEI0AMEER - M EHE
mE  ARFAEREEN T =2 \BAANEE
o sRB/D A RFTIERFHRA RS EER
BEIRERIE RN ER 2B BEE - AEH
AN RFIREEZEEER - HRAEE
BERMNEETIRRENERS - BHE—KN
TEETRBIR E=F - BRKEFFTIES
BB o

HEEEKSERMIZRERAF « —F—TFFHR
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

23. EWE ZFE(8)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

Within 3 months =EAR

3 to 6 months =& f@A

6 to 12 months ANETZEA
1 to 2 years —EWF

2 to 3 years ME=4F
Over 3 years =FHE

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At 1 January n—A—HB
Impairment losses recognised R ZBEEE

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties and the
receivables are not expected to be recovered. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.
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HH W E ZRIBERESTAT

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
498,806 342,947
203,928 121,795
64,517 74,232
26,923 19,435
1,063 1,626
- 134
795,237 560,169

W E SR8 2 RERE 2 ZE8anT

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
3,060 3,060
3,060 3,060

ERIRER BN E S RIATIERE MR T
FER - BB AREZEREKEZHKIA
R B 5 A 5% A R A (R (T I G s LA

{EEINSRHEE



23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2010
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23. ERE SFE(8)

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired REEATARRE
Past due but not impaired: BAHERRE
Less than 6 months past due AT R /N E A
6 to 12 months past due mENE+ @A
Over 12 months past due wmE+ @A E

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate to
their fair values.

ZNER B RAR R (E ) B UK E 5 5K IE AR e 5 AT 40
™

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT

754,325 528,277
36,545 26,258
4,354 4,380
13 1,254
795,237 560,169

REE I ARRAE H R IR TY EL A 84T BA
BRORSNEREFARM -

ERBERRENRERIBTRS LB IR
B - AN EEERUBHREAES  BF
RERDRE S 2BKE - AAREERA
BARZEERIELRERE - ARELER
ZERERFA TAERRIRREMER IR

it o
ZERWESFANERERELAAEER
=

HEEEABERIHERERAR « — 224443 129
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER  24. FA{YRE ~ Sl € R HbEWFIE

RECEIVABLES
Group
TEE
2010 2009
—EB-EF —TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREBTIT
Prepayments to subcontractors SEUN PR N5
and suppliers e r TR I8 19,864 4,871
Deposits Hica 17,806 13,396
Other receivables H b e GRIE 5,619 7,221
43,289 25,488
Less: Impairment B ORE (150) (150)
43,139 25,338

The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits and other ZETBNFIE - 5] & M E M RN IE R BRE(E
receivables approximate to their fair values. BEEARBEMES -

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The FalEEBEARSORE o Ll [ HE iUk
financial assets included in “Other receivables” above related H | ABEN SR E E Ty BT 89N 8 2 1) R0 8%
to receivables for which there was no recent history of default. HEWFZIES R -
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 25. RERREEBEYUAREFER

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Group Company
REE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —IFTThF ZB-BF —IZTITNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR¥TRT ARETT
Cash and bank balances e MIRIT4E R 414,203 254,879 28,500 9,559
Time deposits TEHRTF R 30,978 88,057 - 88,057
445,181 342,936 28,500 97,616
Less: Pledged bank balances ¥ : BB iZIZH 2K
for project bidding HIRTTHERR (5,944) (500) - -
Pledged bank balances IRITEFRNER
for bank loans HIRTTEE R (17,000) (5,200) - =
Pledged bank balances {ER BRI E
for letters of credit RITHERR (6,432) - - -
Pledged bank balances AR ES: ol=k vl
for bills payable RITHERR (1,602) - - -
Sub-total NEE (30,978) (5,700) - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREEEY 414,203 337,236 28,500 97,616
Group Company
rEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —ITThF ZB-BF —ITITNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT AR¥TRT ARETT
Cash and bank balances e RIBITEHR AR
and time deposits TEHFERA TS EHE
denominated in: FI{E :
- RMB —AR¥ 392,131 227,713 - =
- US$ —%7T 18,827 1,409 63 65
— HK$ — BT 34,223 113,814 28,437 97,551
445,181 342,936 28,500 97,616
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25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)

25.

%?&ﬁ@%@%ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ%

N

26.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies.
However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

26.

ARBETAT B A LR SEMER - A - R
1R R B K ek Y SN I (AR D1 e A E - SR R A
EEERE  AEEEERBERELEINE
EBHRITHARBHBAHMER -

RITREEET A IRITHE KA R ZF P R
B MHENERZERANF—BE=@
A SAKEZARRSFRME - WiRERE
R BT ARG R SRITAASRAEIRTE 3R
EFALHLETRER - FERIFHRTT
H o

BNEZRERENRE

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Within 3 months =EAR

3 to 6 months =& f@A

6 to 12 months ANETZEA
1to 2 years —EWF

2 to 3 years ME=4F
Over 3 years =FHE

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled within one to six months. The carrying
amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate to their
fair values.
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KENFEBOREOITAT

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBFIT
33,190 52,767
17,097 5,681
5,952 3,597
7,989 6,050
4,627 2,650
5,131 3,010
73,986 73,755
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27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 27. HAES IR R R RUIE
Group Company
rEE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009

—2-2F _"TTNE —B-BF _—TTIhH
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREBTIL AR®TR ARETT

Advances from customers BEER 13,316 18,420 - =
Tax and surcharge payables &8 K Hf hnfE 3¢ 56,193 28,216 - =
Accrued expenses FEETAX 5,488 3,353 591 560
Other payables H AT 5RIE 7,125 9,454 1,747 1,585

82,122 59,443 2,338 2,145
Other payables and accruals are unsecured, non-interest- Hih BN FRIEREFTRIEREER 22 RE
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying EFEEE o HALME[RIBE KB RUIRRRE
amounts of the other payables and accruals approximate to BEEEAREERS °

their fair values.
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 28. HESBTER
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZTNF
Group Effective Effective
PN interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
EWRAE  Matuity RMB'000  ERFIX Maturity ~ RMB'000
(%) E ARTR (%) 3 ARETR
Current TE
Bank loans BITER
— unsecured i 5.31 2011 100,000 = = =
Bank loans FITER
- secured — B 4.78~5.56 2011 158,750 4.78~5.31 2010 75,000
Bank loans FITER
— secured —BHER Hong Kong
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“HIBOR") HIBOR
EBRIT BT
BERE FES35)
+0.95~3.75 2011 40,980 +3.5 2010 4,402
299,730 79,402
Non-current FRE
Bank loans BITER
- secured — B 4.78~5.96 2012-2013 96,250 486 2011-2012 40,000
Bank loans FITER
- secured —HiEH HIBOR
EBRIT
FERFE
+0.95 2012-2020 8,594
HIBOR
EBRIT
RERE
+3.5 2012 4,255
HIBOR HIBOR
EBBT BBRIT
BERE FEN
+3.75 2012-2013 68,074 +3.5  2011-2012 13,207
177,173 53,207
476,903 132,609
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 28. MESRITER(E)
(Continued)
2010 2009
“E-Z% —ZTNE
Company Effective Effective
N interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
EBRAE  Matwity RMB'000  EEFX  Maturty  RMBO0O
(%) HE AR%Tn (%) FE ARETRT
Current E
Bank loans PITER
- secured —HiEH HIBOR HIBOR
BBRAT BRI
E%HFE RIZHFE
+0.95~3.75 2011 40,980 +3.5 2010 4,402
Non-current FRE
Bank loans PITER
~ secured — A HIBOR
BB
GE$/3-N
+0.95 2012-2020 8,594
HIBOR
BBRAT
E%HFE
+3.5 2012 4,255
HIBOR HIBOR
BBRAT BRRIT
RERE FES
+3.75 2012-2013 68,074 +3.5 2011-2012 13,207
80,923 13,207

121,903 17,609
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

28. MERITER ()

(Continued)
Group Company
rEE ¥ /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—EB-2F —IFThF ZB-TF IZTINF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR®BTRT ARETT
Analysed into JE(EE
bank loans repayable: IRITERDIT -
Within one year —FR 299,730 79,402 40,980 4,402
In the second year E_F 79,771 28,805 22,271 8,805
In the third year E=F 92,871 24,402 54,121 4,402
Beyond five years FHELA L 4,531 - 4,531 =
476,903 132,609 121,903 17,609

Except for those bank loans of which interest rates are linked
with HIBOR are denominated in HK$, all bank loans are
denominated in RMB.

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(@)  Mortgages over the Group’s land and buildings, which
had an aggregate carrying value at the end of the
reporting period of approximately RMB21,167,000
(2009: Nil);

(b) Mortgages over the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments, which had a carrying value at the end of
the reporting period of approximately RMB32,879,000
(2009: Nil);

(c) The pledge of certain of the Group’s deposits
amounting to RMB17,000,000 (2009:
RMB5,200,000);

(d)  Hunan Singyes’ equity interest directly held by Innofast

with investment cost amounting to HK$75,000,000 as
at 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil);
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FrELFBIRITRI IR B HBORITERAET
HESN - IERITEFIGUARKFHE

REEE TRITERE AT RIAEREM:

(a) ZAEBELHNIEFHIRE Nﬁziﬁﬁﬂ%
BREEA LM AR 21,167,0007T(=
ThE: &)

(b) AEEELBARERAEGES R
2 BRI EEA A R 32,879,0007E (=
TEHE )

© AEFBETHEZRNER BARK
17,000000t( —ZEZENAF: ARK
5,200,0007¢ )

(d) BEFERFANREEEE R
Z—ZE+ A=+ HOREXLR
75,000,000/ 7T (TN F: &)



28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS
(Continued)
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28. MERITER ()

In addition, the Company’s directors have guaranteed certain
of the Group’s bank loans as follows (note 37):

(a)

the Company’s director, Mr. Liu Hongwei, has
guaranteed the Group’s bank loans of RMB60,000,000
(2009: RMB45,000,000) free of charge;

the Company’s directors, Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr. Sun
Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans
of RMB125,000,000 (2009: RMB70,000,000) free of
charge;

the Company’s directors, Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr. Sun
Jinli, have jointly guaranteed the Group’s bank loans
of HK$117,000,000 (2009: HK$40,000,000) free of
charge;

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
current interest-bearing bank loans approximate to their

fair values. The fair value of the Group’s non-current
portion bank loans amounted to RMB176,614,000 (2009:
RMB52,705,000).

AN ARBEERAEEE TRITEFRMH
THIEAR (BRE37):

(@) ZAAREFRLGEAEEERAEE
RITE AR 60,000,000 (ZZEZH,
& AR#45,000,0007T)

(b) AAFEZRAGEERFAESREL
EERXRERAEEHETERARE
125,000,000 c( — BB HE: ARK
70,000,0007T)

() ARAREFRAMKFERKESEEE
BEARERASEERITERER
117,000000c( ZEZE L F: B
40,000,0007T) :

REERARRREIK S RTE RN IRAEE S
HAREBERE - NEBSEREEHMOIRITE
TR AR EEAARE 176,614,000 T(ZZZ
hE: AR¥52,705,00078) ©
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29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

29 EEHREAKE

EREFIREEZZENT

The movements of deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Withholding
taxes Total
FENB st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETIT ARETTT
At 1 January 2009 RZZETNFE—H—H - -
Deferred tax charged to FREEZ R
profit or loss during the IEIERTE (FI7E 10)
year (note 10) 7,505 7,505
At 31 December 2009 R=_ZEZEAF+=_A=+—H 7,505 7,505
Deferred tax charged to FAREERNR
profit or loss during the HIERER IR
year (note 10) (FftsE 10) 12,394 12,394
At 31 December 2010 R_ZE—ZF+-_F=+—H 19,899 19,899

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is RIENCEMBRE AT NF—HF—H
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign R ERRKS ZINERENLRINREEES
investment enterprises established in the PRC effective from RIS - BEUR10% AR - R iE B KRE

1 January 2008. Under the Arrangement between Mainland
China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention
of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income, the
withholding tax rate for dividends paid by a Mainland China
resident enterprise to a Hong Kong resident enterprise is
5% if the Hong Kong enterprise owns at least 25% of the
Mainland China enterprise. As a result, deferred tax liabilities
of RMB12,394,000 relating to withholding tax on the
distributable profits of Zhuhai Singyes and Singyes Renewable
Energy for the year have been recognised.
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30. ISSUED CAPITAL 30. BBITRA
Shares & 12
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
FExn FET
Authorised: VERE
1,200,000,000 ordinary shares 1,200,000,000 A% &A% EI1E 0.01 =T
of US$0.01 each H)E AL 12,000 12,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREHR :
490,900,000 (2009: 491,000,000) 490,900,000 f% (ZZZ A.4F : 491,000,000
ordinary shares of US$0.01 each §%) SR EE 0.01 XITA SR 4,909 4,910
Equivalent to RMB’000 e ARETT 33,589 33,596
During the year, the movements in issued capital were as RER » BBITRAZHHINT ¢
follows:
Number of Issued
shares in issue capital
ERITRAHE BRTRAE
RMB’000
AREFTT
At 1 January 2009 R-ZZEZENF—HF—H 1,504,502 122
Issuance of shares LT D 60,000,000 4,104
Capitalisation of share premium B AR R E 366,495,498 25,066
Issuance of shares BT D 63,000,000 4,304
At 31 December 2009 and RZZEZNF+TZA=1+—H
1 January 2010 r—ZF—FF—H—H 491,000,000 33,596
Redemption of shares Ef:35E) (100,000) (7)
At 31 December 2010 RZEBE—ZTF+_-_A=+—H 490,900,000 33,589
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30. ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

30. EBITRA(B)

31.

On 27 May 2010, the Company redeemed 100,000 of its own
ordinary shares on the HKSE at a price of HK$3.35 per share.
Those redeemed shares were cancelled and accordingly,
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
nominal value of these redeemed shares. The premium paid
on the redemption of shares of RMB287,000 was debited to
the share premium account.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

31.

RZZT—TFRAZ+EH ARFEESR
3.35 8 LB B A B 22 B2 i E 100,000 %
L@k wERERMEES AR 8ME
BAORAMEZEROOEERD - BERRD
BT 2 (< B9 (B A R 287 000 7T B IR S5 (B
ARG o

ERETE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include directors, employees of the Group. The Scheme was
approved by the Company’s shareholders on 19 December
2008 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.
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B RAFN (FHETEER) AR R RME R
B2 &I 2 10%  EA+— 8 H HE A
AREBERENSRAERSEERTNRS
B BB THRN AR RIFMEM B E 2 BT
Z 1% o AR M PR BB A3 — P 3 B A A2
AR IR ® 4L

BYARBES  TRAHHETERR - oK
FEMBRALZBRE  HAFAREEL
FERITER ZHE < 1o PMER+ A H
AR T ARABEERRIBILIFNTES -
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31. BRESE (B)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of RMB1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period of 0.5 to 2
years and ends on a date which is a period of 10 years from
the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of offer of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

REBERE 2 EAR RARA B 24 B HE
“THNHARXHRBEARESEARKE LT
BES - MRLBREZTEDRRESERE -
YAIRFEEMEZBBMRFAGERREA
HEt Mt 2ZBARILE -

B TEERESERE - ENAHERIAT
R (DARBIRMDNIBERY B SR
R B ¢ (i) AABBRORBEREZHB S

TS AEB 2 FHRmE - KDk
(PR

BREY T TRHAARDKEHERRAE
LIRREHER) -

FRZT B TRARITRZBRENT

2010 2009
—E-BF ZETNEF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
HK$ Number HK$ Number
per share of options per share of options
hnE '000 e '000
FHITEE BREHE TIa17EE FERERE
BRER T4 BRAET F
At 1 January »—A—H 4.30 25,480 = =
Granted during the year FREH 3.33 6,000 4.30 25,680
Forfeited during the year FRRIR - - 4.30 (200)
Vested during the year FRFB - - - -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 4.12 31,480 4.30 25,480
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

31. BRESE (B)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
2010
—2-%F
Number of options Exercise price*
REHE TEE
’000 HK$
T4 BT
8,493 4.30
8,493 4.30
8,494 4.30
2,000 333
2,000 3.33
2,000 3.33
31,480
2009
—EENF
Number of options Exercise price*
REHE TEE
’000 HK$
T4 BT
8,493 4.30
8,493 4.30
8,494 4.30
25,480
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment

in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.
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IR B R AT PR 2 4T (R AT B
T :

Exercise period
17164
per share

B

23-01-10 to 22-07-19
23-07-10 to 22-07-19
23-07-11 to 22-07-19
27-05-11 to 26-05-20
27-05-12 to 26-05-20
27-05-13 to 26-05-20

Exercise period
17164
per share

B

23-01-10 to 22-07-19
23-07-10 to 22-07-19
23-07-11 to 22-07-19

© EREZTEETRERRARET  RAAH
R 2 o A B T e 5
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BRESE(E)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$8,538,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB7,439,000)
or HK$1.42 each (equivalent to approximately RMB1.24
each) (2009: HK$47,465,000, HK$1.85 each) of which the
Group recognised a share option expense of HK$ 2,990,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB2,606,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$23,057,000).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists
the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) B (%)
Expected volatility (%) %EHH&% (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) =R (%)

As the historical volatility of the Company was inadequate
for estimating the fair value of the option, the expected
volatility was determined according to the best available
average annualized standard deviations of the continuously
compounded rates of return on the average share prices of
the comparable companies with similar businesses as of the
date of grant, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
31,480,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 31,480,000 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of US$314,800
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,446,000) and share
premium of approximately HK$127,098,000 (before issue
expenses).

FRATER B ERE AR B8 48,538,000
TT(FRERH AR 7,439,000 7T ) 8L F % 1.42
BIL(FHERNERARE 1.2470) :z;fn
&2 47465000;‘%73 C BRR185E L) ¢
RAREEREE —ZTFE+-—A=+— EI
mif;ﬁqﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬂgsﬂi 2,990,00058 7T (48
BN ARBE2606,0007T) (ZEENF :
23,057,000;87¢)

FAMRLBRGEE CBREZ AR BEDR
i BHRA R B A - A RIRRE
PR PR IE 2 1R R AR TREDIFAIRAE
BZBAE :

2010 2009
—ZF —ETNF
1.72 0.47
60.714 63.652
2.42 2.35

2D NN il s R A PR e e S /N
RfE - BHKEDERRRHE B EMALER
AL AR FHREZFEES WSR2 &
EFHFERELZRMEN  UEFTEZEERE
B

REtEAR BERILE ABREZH MR

p=111

RIREHIR - ANARIREZETE]5 31,480,000
D EARITEERE - ZFEARITEBREMNE
HUEITHE EARBIZEBEAREET - g
B EBINEETT 31,480,000 BEAN A B X 378 A% K 2=
A FEINIRZR 314,800 & 7T (FEE R 4 2,446,000
BT MY B4 127,098,000 7T (R $0ER
BATRXAD) ©
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. iERfESHEI (&)
As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the RAMBHREMER - ARRIBEZTEA
Company had 31,480,000 share options outstanding under 31,480,00017 H AR TT{EEERLHE - AERAQR]
the Scheme, which represented approximately 6.41% of the Rz BEZEITRNA6.41% °
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

32. RESERVES 32. f#fE
Group REE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 5 to 6
of the financial statements.

Statutory reserves of the PRC subsidiaries

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC on Joint Ventures
Using Chinese and Foreign Investment” and the respective
articles of association of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China, appropriations from net profit, as determined in
accordance with PRC generally accepted accounting
principles (“PRC GAAP”) and after offsetting accumulated
losses from prior years, should be made to the reserve
fund and the enterprise expansion fund, and before profit
distributions to the investors. The reserve fund can be
used to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital.
The enterprise expansion fund can be used for business
development or to increase capital. The percentages to be
appropriated to the reserve fund and the enterprise expansion
fund in the foreign investment subsidiaries are determined by
the board of directors. In addition, the wholly-foreign-owned
subsidiaries are not required to appropriate the enterprise
expansion fund, and the percentages to be appropriated
to the reserve fund shall be no less than 10%. When the
cumulative reserve fund reaches one-half of the registered
capital, the appropriation is no longer mandatory.

Pursuant to the resolution of the board of directors of Singyes
Renewable Energy on 15 January 2011, 10% and 5% of net
profit of 2010 were appropriated to the reserve fund and the
enterprise expansion fund, respectively.

Pursuant to the resolution of the board of directors of Zhuhai
Singyes on 15 January 2011, no profits were appropriated to
the reserve fund or enterprise expansion fund.

144 china Singyes Solar Technologies Holdings Limited ® Annual Report 2010

AEBAEREFRE 2 FREBERARE
BNMBBRFESEC LA BRBERA

FhEIF B A B AVEE R B

BRE(PEARAMBPINGBELELER)R
AEBAEFBEAREHBARNARERE Al
BERPBEARSTEREEOLMN (BEHEE
FRFBIER - RAKREE DKM AT B
ERESMEERRES - ZRHEESATAR
HHRFTEIERIZMNER - ARERESAA
REBBERIIEMER - SN EMBARBNE
REEERECEBERESNANLHESSE
E o SN HNEBE L EBEARARNBRNED
XERES  MENERBEESNBAILAT
PR10% - RFEESRBEEIEMER—
FE o TR -

BiE—E——F A +AHEEFRERESS
FPRZRER R —ZFEMH A 10% & 5%
DRBNEFBEEEROCERREES -

BRE_Z——F - A+HERKEEEEESN
RBR - TRARBEESLECEBRRESENA
I



Notes to Financial Statements
R S e

31 December 2010
—2-24+-A=+-A8

32. RESERVES (Continued) 32. & (&)
Company ¥ NG|
The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the movements REALBEFE » AR A FEESSELBEREE
therein for the current and prior years are as follows: BT
Share Share  Exchange
premium Contributed option fluctuation Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve losses Total

37
RtvaEE ARG BRERE KBRE RHER At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTRT AREBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR

At 1 January 2009 RZZZNF—F—H 73,794 - - (748) (37,351) 35,695
Total comprehensive AEELEBEASR

loss for the year - - - (327) (19,688) (20,015)
Issuance of shares Bk 235,949 - = = = 235,949
Capitalisation of share BinaEERME

premium (25,066) - - - - (25,066)
Share issue expenses BIRMHEY (14,354) - - - - (14,354)
Transfer to contributed BRIEARS

surplus (40,000) 40,000 - - - -
Interim 2009 dividend “ETNEHRERE = (9,820) = = - (9,820)
Proposed final 2009 BR-ZZNERERS

dividend (note 12) (P 12) - (14,730) - - - (14,730)
Equity-settled share RAGE EREL b

option GEX)

arrangements (note 31) - - 20,321 - - 20,321

At 31 December 2009 R-_EENE+-A=1+—H

and 1 January 2010 k=25 —-HF—H 230,323 15,450 20,321 (1,075) (57,039) 207,980
Total comprehensive AEELAFRAS

loss for the year - - - (8,281) (18,027) (26,308)
Redemption of shares BRI (PiE30)

(note 30) (287) = = = - (287)
Proposed final 2010 BR-Z-SERERS

dividend (note 12) (P 12) - (14727) - - - (14727)
Equity-settled share RAGEE EREL 5

option (Ft3E31)

arrangements (note 31) - - 19,323 - - 19,323
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZF+-A=1+—A 230,036 723 39,644 (9,356) (75,066) 185,981
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 33. FERER

During the year, the Company indirectly held a 75% equity
interest in Zhuhai Singyes through Innofast and the remaining
25% equity interests in Zhuhai Singyes were held by Mr. Liu
Hongwei and Mr. Sun Jinli, two directors of the Company,
for the purpose of complying with the PRC regulations which
impose restrictions on the scope of construction projects
undertaken by wholly-foreign-owned enterprises. Pursuant
to a letter of undertaking jointly provided by Mr. Liu Hongwei
and Mr. Sun Jinli in favour of Innofast in December 2004
and another letter of undertaking jointly provided by Mr.
Liu Hongwei and Mr. Sun Jinli in favour of Zhuhai Singyes
in June 2005, Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr. Sun Jinli have
agreed to transfer all of their interests in Zhuhai Singyes to
Innofast once those restrictions are released and return all
considerations received from Innofast, except their initial
capital contributions, to Zhuhai Singyes for free. In addition,
according to Zhuhai Singyes’s articles of association, Mr.
Liu Hongwei and Mr. Sun Jinli are only entitled to a fixed
annual return of RMB100,000 since 2004 instead of sharing
profits of Zhuhai Singyes based on equity interests held by
them. Pursuant to a letter of undertaking provided by Mr. Liu
Hongwei and Mr. Sun Jinli in favour of Innofast in August
2008, Innofast would be entitled to all of the remaining assets
upon liquidation of Zhuhai Singyes except for the initial capital
contributions in Zhuhai Singyes by Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr.
Sun Jinli.

Consequently, the Company has consolidated the statement
of comprehensive income of Zhuhai Singyes in full during
the year and accounted for the fixed annual return of
RMB100,000 entitled by Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr. Sun Jinli
as profit attributable to non-controlling interests.

During the year, the Group established a subsidiary, Singyes
Photovoltaic, together with Xi'an Zhongrun Industrial Co., Ltd.
(“Xi'an Zhongrun”) with 60% and 40% equity interests held,
respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, non-controlling
interests represented 25% of the paid-up capital of Zhuhai
Singyes held by Mr. Liu Hongwei and Mr. Sun Jinli,
amounting to US$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB14,702,000), plus the fixed annual return of
RMB100,000 since 2004 and 40% equity interest of Singyes
Photovoltaic.
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RER - FBESEREEINEG B E S ERAERNE
EIFEBINRENERO B - RNRFFEBRIEN
MR ARG B 75% HARHE - IR REEER
#R25% HY AR B AR A Bl i 28 = BIAT 4 S5 A&
REZESEBEERE - BERZ=ZZ 7@¢‘|’ )EJ
BIAT 4 5 4 RIR @18 S A A M Rl 25
REFFEFERGEUARR_ZERAF A %'JZI E
S RIA RIS SR A ARG I EE 1) Bl 2 T HL A 12
S — DA R - — B SRS AR
BT HE S R RSB EERBRIFENERES
ERGHEN 2 A - jﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ%fﬁ'ﬂ%L
AEANOAERE  ERENEREER
HN e AN - BIBIRBEEMARER  §=F
TUOFR B ERAECETEENZE
FFEEERARE 100,0007T « M IEREE
SRAMNER D ZIREEZERNEN o BIRBAT
HHEERESEBEEN T \F )\ AUEH
Fla iR gt ERGE R - IR E RN EE IS
TERBESAMR NEE « MERIALAE A MK
SIESTAERIREFEER EIEERRIN o

At - ARRIE2E A HIKE R ENFREAR
BlER A EENRFRERELEE
Yo B £ 67 [ E B #R A R %5 100,000 7T JASE#2E
s AR A AR

FA AREERARERERERAR (A
2B KB AREENIK - DRIFE
60% 2 40% HHE o

REIR - R RIE R Bl o R &
SREEFENINERE L% NEMER &
202,000,000 7T (KIHEE R A K 14,702,000
o) ME—ETEMEFENSFEELBRAR
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. IAREE
As at 31 December 2010, the bank loans of RMB135,000,000 RZE—ZF+-_A=+—0 REHFHEH
granted to Zhuhai Singyes are guaranteed by the Company. ¥ ZRITERA R 135,000,000 T A AR
AEIR ©
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no EREHR  REEWESANAREE -

significant contingent liabilities.

35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35. KEHELH
As lessee ERAEA
The Group leases certain of its office premises under AEERBELSHAZHERAETHAE
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are ¥ o  ZEMEROBERB A —KRE - DRIk
negotiated for terms of one or two years. At the end of the HHIR - ANEERER T EEEIH A9 7] 8
reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease HCE AN AR EENES BTN ¢
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Within one year —FN 372 293
36. COMMITMENTS 36. &
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B _ESTRT 5E 35 SRl 2 &S SRR AV EAESN - RIS
in note 35 above, the Group had the following capital R - REE A T EREIE

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARMETIT

Contracted, but not provided for: BETH - BRVERHE ¢
Buildings BT 96,021 =
Machinery H2s 91,089 =

187,110 =

PEEEKGERMIZRERAF « — T TFFHR
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 37. BELRF RER

BALANCES
(a) Related party transactions (a) BAELXRSB
As at 31 December 2010, guarantees provided by R-ZE—ZFTF+-_A=+—8  K&£F
related parties of the Group are as follows: FER R ERT ¢
(i) the Group's bank loans of RMB60,000,000 were i) AXEBZETERARKE
guaranteed by Mr. Liu Hongwei free of charge; 60,000,0007T FHZIAT 4 e A R B IR
R
(i) the Group’s bank loans of RMB125,000,000
were guaranteed jointly by Mr. Liu Hongwei and (i) "EEBBRTERARE
Mr. Sun Jinli free of charge; 125,000,000 70 (3 BIAL 4 e 4 2 B
ER
(iii)y  the Group's bank loans of HK$117,000,000
were guaranteed jointly by Mr. Liu Hongwei and (i) ALEEZEITEF 117,000,000
Mr. Sun Jinli free of charge. TR G ERRSELERE
B SR o
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) AEBEFEEEASHHH
Group
2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREBTT
Salaries, allowances and e ERLREYN =
benefits in kind 2,020 2,484
Pension scheme contributions  R{R& 5 39 32
Equity-settled share option A& 4 B RE AR R S
expense 3,693 5,624

5,752 8,140
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
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B RS E IR B B R BUR

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank loans, and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in the market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt
obligations with a floating interest rate.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a
mix of fixed and variable rate debts. At 31 December 2010,
approximately 74.4% (2009: 86.7%) of the Group’s interest-
bearing bank loans bore interest at fixed rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate loans).

AEENEIZEBTABENSRITREME
£ RERREEBY  ZSERITANTIE
RZRATEENKEERET - AREESR
EREMEREERAE  flnEERETE
BRELNEEE SR - ANF0R *ETééIiEi
MR - BN B SR - RN IR
FEETHRIA -

AEEemTAMES 2 EERKR %ﬂrﬂ
B SNERRR - EERBRRAEE SRR o
=R kEEEESERRABUR - %5%5&&
BRI

FRE R

AEBEFAEERAO TSN Z BB R EEAR
Er R SEBAR

AEEBZBRANARRMEBEREEER

BAX RZE—ZTF+=-_A=1+—H8 &%

E#74.4% (ZFTNF : 86.7%) 2 M BiR1T
BIREEFEET R o

TRERAEERIEN (FRHFEERZ
SE)HNRA LA B 2 BUNE - Hih#
HRFHF— -

PEEEKSERMIZRERAF « — T TFFHR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

8. MIEMERERMNRBE (&)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

2010 —T —TF
Hong Kong dollar BT
Hong Kong dollar BT
2009 —ETNF
Hong Kong dollar BT
Hong Kong dollar BT

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
HK$ and US$ exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). There is no
impact on the Group’s equity.
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Fl=mk (&)

Increase/
(decrease) in
basis points
#im, GBd)
HE

100
(100)

100
(100)

SN LR

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before tax
BADRF
i, O )
RMB’000
ARBTT

1,219
(1,219)

176
(176)

AEBSERZEERR - ZERBRKE AL
BEMNEERIAINEEELNES -

TREAHNETRETERNAIEEES) - £
HBBRFAEOBERT - GAREERRS
HRNBRAEN (EREBEERAEZA
AREEEY) NBEREDN - AEEESRL &

o2, 73| | B 488
ZE|FE o



38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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5. EREERNRBEEK(E)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

2010 —ET-FF

If RMB weakens against HK$ fig ABRHE W T2 (B
If RMB strengthens against HK$ i AR B THE
If RMB weakens against US$ W AR HETTE
If RMB strengthens against US$ AR HETHE
2009 —ETNF

If RMB weakens against HK$ fig ABRHE W Tz (B
If RMB strengthens against HK$ i AR B TAE
If RMB weakens against US$ W AR HETTE
If RMB strengthens against US$ AR HETTHE

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, trade and other receivables, and other financial
assets represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets. Substantially all of the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial
institutions located in Mainland China, which management
believes are of high credit quality.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. Moreover, as the Group’s exposure is spread
over a diversified portfolio of customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

SR (48)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
foreign profit
currency rate before tax
Ex BADEA
/(T ) i, ORd)
% RMB’000
ARETFT
5 1,714
(5) (1,714)
5 2,216
(5) (2,216)
5 176
(5) (176)
5 3,026
(5) (3,026)
EERE

RekBeEEY  EREFR  BHREME
WkR - REREMEREENREERRA
SEMAZESHEEFRNEREERR -
AEBRAZEHe RACSENHERER
REEREREERNTEAREAR S BEER
5o

AREEERAREEENE=ZTALRS -
ARBEHEREE - IERREREFIRZINE
FRKBERBRERR ° 1IN  BRFIRHRE
EFEEE - MAKE AR HERERIL T
EXR- S ARAKENEFAAEER
2 IR B EANEESTERR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

38. B EREE A WRBEK (&)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability
to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the settlement from customers and the
payment to vendors.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

RBES R

AEBERBRADESTET

Ae

>~m

RHEES

REROER ZTAFRESRTARSRE
E (FIanfE E 5 50R) MEIH B A R IR &

XBHSME o

AEENRDESTERAREESHEIER
HE B BR B BT P NRENRTHERME

Z RS FEIZEET] ©

RI|ER - EREFTOERMBROMK - K
SEzERABEIHERDT

Group AEEH
Less than 3 to less than
3 months 12 months 1to5 Beyond
On demand PR ZEOR years 5 years Total
RERE =R t-ER -ZIf EENUE &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETR ARETR AR¥ETR AR¥ETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2010 R-B-ZF
T-A=1-A
Interest-bearing bank loans WS RITER - 4500 295230 172,642 4531 476,903
Trade and bills payables ENESHBRENSE 65,986 8,000 - - - 73,986
Other payables and accruals H (308 R ERT 2R 82,122 - - - - 82,122
148,108 12,500 295,230 172,642 4,531 633,011
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
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38. B AR EE R WRBEK (&)

Group (Continued)

As at 31 December 2009

Interest-bearing bank loans
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

Company

As at 31 December 2010

Interest-bearing bank loans

Other payables and accruals

Guarantees given to banks in
connection with loans
granted to a subsidiary

AKE (&)

Less than 3 to less than

3months 12 months 105 Beyond
0On demand PR ZEIR years 5 years Total
REE @A +Z@R —ZEEF "FHhE =
RMB'00O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR
RZEZNE
+-A=+-H
M2 RITER - 49,402 30,000 53,207 - 132,609
BN E 550E 73,755 - - - = 73,755
HA N TR R R 30 59,443 - = = = 59,443
133,198 49,402 30,000 53,207 - 265,807
RAT]
Less than 3 to less than
On  3months 12 months 1to5 Beyond
demand PR ZEHR years 5 years Total
RERE =f8A +=fiA -ZIf RENE it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARETRT ARETR AR%Tr ARETR
RZB-%%F
t=A=t-A
MBHITER - 4,500 36,480 76,392 4,531 121,903
H A ERFIE R B R 2,338 - - - - 2,338
MRTELNABE T
MEARREMER
135,000 - - - - 135,000
137,338 4,500 36,480 76,392 4,531 259,241
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

38. B EREE A WRBEK (&)

Company (Continued) AR (&)

Less than 3 to less than

3months 12 months ltob Beyond
On demand PR ZEIR years 5 years Total

RESE =R =R —ZRF LFNL AFt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT AREBTT ARBTL ARETT ARETE

As at 31 December 2009 R-ETNE
+=RA=1+-H

Interest-bearing bank loans i BRITER - 4,402 - 13,207 = 17,609
Other payables and accruals HitER AR ER TR 2,145 = = = = 2,145
Guarantees given to banks in MERITTELE S BR T

connection with facilities B ARREMER

granted to a subsidiary 17,610 - - - - 17,610

19,755 4,402 - 13,207 - 37,364

Capital management BEXAEE

The Group’s objectives of its capital management are to AEBMEAEREERREEERFELSED

safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for the shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, and to provide an
adequate return to shareholders by pricing services and
products commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises
interest-bearing bank loans, trade payables, other payables
and accruals and tax payable, less cash and cash equivalents
and pledged deposits. Total equity comprises owners’ equity
and Non-controlling interests stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
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35. R E R B 8 MR (B)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a
healthy capital level in order to support its businesses. The
principal strategies adopted by the Group include, but are
not limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans,
if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level
of capital to support its business. The gearing ratios as at the
end of the reporting periods were as follows:

Interest-bearing bank loans
Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals
Income tax payable

Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Less: Pledged deposits

Net debt/(assets)

Total equity

Total equity and net debt

Gearing ratio

M B RITER
RNEZRARENER
HLA A IR S B IR
PN FIEH

B RERREEEY
B EIRER

FAE(BE)
GG
Mg OFETS

AR

ARE B R RES R IER L R ERR A E AKX
¥ UXREER - ARBRREZREKE
BRETRNEHRIR S REE RN SRS
BB - RIFAUARTHEESIEKRTR
HEREFEMBETS (WFR) - UHERA
SEHRBEIEKFNEARAIIFEER - NEE
BRERL RN

Group
TEH
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT
476,903 132,609
73,986 73,755
82,122 59,443
21,018 13,632
(414,203) (337,236)
(30,978) (5,700)
208,848 (63,497)
1,063,100 838,851
1,271,948 775,354
16% (8%)
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 39. ERARBLEEE
PERIOD
On 6 January 2011, the Group received a notice in respect of R-ZZE——F— A NH  AEEWEEREH
government subsidy for the 20MW roof top solar farm project MEEXOMWEBEET W EHBESEBAR
in Hunan Singyes with total amount of RMB134,850,000, of & 134,850,000 7T AT # BE RO 3@ A0 - RN &
which RMB50,000,000 has been received by the Group on ER_E——F— A+t NLBREEFRARE
19 January 2011. 50,000,000 JTHIFE AL ©

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 40. #EBBEHREK

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2011.
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